September 30, 2014

Superfund Records Center SITE: <u>New Bedford</u> BREAK: <u>5-4</u> OTHER: <u>565833</u>

Third Modification to EPA's Final Determination for the South Terminal Project – Additional Dredging to Widen Channel and Associated Blasting for Rock Removal

THIRD MODIFICATION SUMMARY: After completing consultation with other federal and state agencies, as required by federal and state law, and after reviewing additional submissions by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts ("the Commonwealth"), EPA has determined that the Commonwealth's request for a Third Modification to EPA's Final Determination for the South Terminal Project, issued on November 19, 2012, as modified by the First Modification dated February 4, 2013, and the Second Modification dated September 30, 2013, (altogether referred to as "the Final Determination, as modified" or "FD, as modified") is both protective of human health and the environment, meets the substantive requirements of applicable or relevant and appropriate federal environmental standards and, through the Commonwealth's determination, meets applicable or relevant and appropriate state environmental standards, as long as the conditions set forth in this Third Modification are met. Through this Third Modification, EPA is modifying the South Terminal Project portion of the State Enhanced Remedy ("State Enhanced Remedy" or "SER"), which is incorporated into the 1998 Record of Decision for the Upper and Lower Harbor at the New Bedford Harbor Superfund Site ("1998 ROD") so that it includes additional dredging to reconfigure the 225 foot wide approach channel and the 100 foot wide tug channel to a 300 foot wide channel ("the navigational channel"), eliminating the tug channel and deepening the entire channel to a uniform depth of -30 to -32 MLLW, along with additional associated blasting for rock removal and additional mitigation. This Third Modification also clarifies upland remediation activities at the Radio Tower parcel, including its changed use from ancillary to heavy load use, and incorporates minor changes to the Project: In January 2014, EPA authorized substitution of the use of clean parent material dredged from another source in the Harbor as material for mitigation purposes, and this document continues that authorization as long as certain conditions are met; and in March 2014, EPA authorized one additional blasting event.

The Commonwealth, through the Department of Environmental Protection ("MassDEP"), and the Massachusetts Clean Energy Center ("MassCEC") for the South Terminal Project, will continue to be the lead for conducting the SER work and is responsible for securing all funding for the SER work. EPA and other federal, state and local entities will continue to act as supporting regulatory agencies for the SER work.

Portuguese and Spanish translations of this document are available at the New Bedford Public Library.

SDMS DocID

Page 1

565833

.......

The Administrative Record in support of this Third Modification to the Final Determination for the South Terminal Project will be available at the New Bedford Public Library, 613 Pleasant Street, 2nd Floor Reference Department, New Bedford, MA (508) 961-3067 and the EPA New England Records Center, 5 Post Office Square, 1st floor, Boston, MA (617) 918-1440 as well as online at www.epa.gov/nbh. The Administrative Records for EPA's Final Determination for the South Terminal Project, the Second Modification to EPA's Final Determination for the South Terminal Project, and for the New Bedford Harbor Superfund Site are incorporated by reference into this Administrative Record and may be viewed at the same locations.

Table of Contents

I. Introduction

A. The Third Modification At A Glance

B. Community Impacts

C. Resource Impacts

D. Public Comment

E. Public Record

F. Summary of Third Modification

II. EPA Approval and Conditions

A. Approval and Conditions for Third Modification

III. Background and Description of Work

A. Additional Dredging – Background

B. Description of Dredging Work

C. Blasting

D. Additional Mitigation

IV. Clarification of Upland Remediation at the Radio Tower Parcel and Changed Use

V. Post-Final Determination Minor Changes

- A. Source Material for Mitigation Measures
- B. Single Blasting Event in March 2014
- VI. CERCLA Statutory Requirements
 - A. CERCLA § 121 Factors
 - **B.** Significant Substantive Requirements
 - 1. Section 404 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. §1344)
 - Section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899 (33 U.S.C. §403) Public Interest Review Navigation and Navigable Waters (33 U.S.C. §408)
 - 3. Endangered Species Act (16 U.S.C. §1531 et seq.)
 - Essential Fish Habitat Assessment under the Magnuson-Stevens Act (16 U.S.C. §§ 1851 et seq.) and Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act (16 U.S.C. §661-677e)
 - 5. National Historic Preservation Act (16 U.S.C. § 470, 36 CFR Part 800)
 - 6. Navigation and Navigable Waters, 33 U.S.C. § 408
 - 7. Toxic Substances Control Act (15 U.S.C. § 2601 *et seq.*) PCB Remediation Waste (40 CFR §761.61(c))
 - 8. Section 402 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. §1342)

9. Section 176(C) Of The Clean Air Act General Conformity Rule Review (42 U.S.C. § 7506(c), 40 CFR Part 93, Subpart B) 42 U.S.C. § 7412, 40 CFR Parts 61 and 63 (NESHAPs)

C. Executive Orders and Policies

- Consultation and Coordination with Indian Tribal Governments Executive Order (E.O. 13175) EPA Policy for the Administration of Environmental Programs on Indian Reservations (1984) EPA Policy on Consultation and Coordination with Indian Tribes (May 4, 2011)
- Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations, (E.O. 12898)
- 3. Floodplain Management Executive Order (E.O. 11988)
- 4. Wetland Executive Order (E.O. 11990)
- 5. Invasive Species Executive Order (E.O. 13112)

Figures

Figure 1 – Map of 300' Reconfigured Navigation and Tug Channels

Figure 2 – Map of Additional Blast Areas

Figure 3 – Map of Additional Winter Flounder Mitigation Area

Figure 4 – Map of Archeological Survey Areas

Figure 5 – Map of Paleosol Area

Tables

Table 1 – Sediment Volume and Disposal Locations

Table 2 – Major Federal Substantive Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements (ARARs)

Appendices

Appendix A – Cover email to the Commonwealth's September 25, 2014 Submission

Appendix B – EPA's August 20, 2014 Approval with Conditions for Additional Blasting

Appendix C – EPA's January 22, 2014 Approval with Conditions for the Substitution of Source Material for Mitigation Measures

Appendix D – EPA's March 7, 2014 Approval with Conditions for a Single Blasting Event

Appendix E - Second Modification to November 19, 2012 TSCA § 761.61(c) Determination for New Bedford South Terminal Marine Facility

2

I. Introduction

A. The Third Modification At A Glance...

This is the Third Modification to the Final Determination for the South Terminal Project for the New Bedford Harbor State Enhanced Remedy ("the Third Modification") that EPA issued on November 19, 2012. The Final Determination included the South Terminal Project as part of the State Enhanced Remedy that was approved and integrated into the 1998 ROD, issued on September 25, 1998. This document, and its supporting Appendices and Administrative Record, provides the rationale for EPA's determination that additional dredging to reconfigure the navigational channel, associated blasting for rock removal,¹ elimination of the tug channel, and additional mitigation slightly increases the scope and detail of the South Terminal Project as approved in EPA's Final Determination, as modified, but does not fundamentally change the approved SER. It is consistent with the regulations at 40 C.F.R. § 300.515(f)(I(ii) (State enhancement of remedy) and with the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980 ("CERCLA"), 42 U.S.C. §§ 9601 et. seq.²

With this document, EPA determines that the South Terminal Project described in the Final Determination, as modified by the First and Second Modifications, and by the work described in this Third Modification, which consists of additional dredging to reconfigure the navigational channel (which expands the width of the navigational channel 25' to the west and 75' to the east for a total of 300' wide, with a uniform depth of – 30 to -32 feet MLLW), additional blasting for rock removal associated with the widening and deepening activities, elimination of the 100' wide tug channel, and additional mitigation, along with a clarification and some minor changes, is both protective of human health and the environment and meets the substantive requirements of applicable or relevant and appropriate federal environmental standards. EPA also accepts the Commonwealth's determination that the Project, as modified, meets the applicable or relevant and appropriate state environmental standards. The Project, as modified, does

¹ As explained below in section III.C, EPA approved the associated blasting with conditions on August 20, 2014, based on the lack of environmental or community impacts from prior blasting events and the smaller magnitude of this blasting compared to that which occurred in the winter of 2012-2013. ²While EPA does not believe that an Explanation of Significant Differences ("ESD") under CERCLA is required here, this Third Modification to the Final Determination meets the requirements for an ESD as EPA has complied with CERCLA §117(c) and the National Oil and Hazardous Substances Pollution Contingency Plan, 40 CFR Part 300 ("NCP") §§300.435(c)(2)(i) and 300.825(a)(2). In addition, as with an ESD, this Third Modification to the Final Determination describes to the public the nature of the changes, summarizes the information that led to making the changes, and affirms that the revised action complies with the NCP and the statutory requirements of CERCLA.

not conflict with and is not inconsistent with the New Bedford Harbor Superfund remediation, and EPA reaffirms that the 1998 ROD, including the SER, remains protective of human health and the environment. EPA makes this determination after carefully reviewing the submissions provided by the Commonwealth and after completing its consultation requirements with other federal and state agencies. This Third Modification is subject to the conditions set out below in section II of this document and those contained in the Final Determination, as modified. Accordingly, the South Terminal Project, as modified, will continue to benefit from the CERCLA Section 121(e) permit exclusion.

This document also clarifies the upland remediation activities for the Radio Tower parcel, including its changed use from ancillary to heavy load use, reflects a minor change to the mitigation work, and describes one additional blasting event which occurred in March 2014. This Third Modification incorporates those changes. The First Modification, issued by EPA on February 4, 2013, corrected an inconsistency between section II.2 of the Water Quality Performance Standards (Appendix C of the Final Determination) and section 20.0 H.2 of the Final Determination of Compliance with Section 404 of the Clean Water Act and Section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899 (Appendix E of the Final Determination) with regard to employment of an environmental monitor for the Project. The Second Modification increased the width of the navigational channel by 50 feet (for a total of 225 feet) and the length of the deep draft berthing area by 200 feet (for a total of 800 feet). It also included reconfiguration of CAD Cell 3 and authorized the use of blasting in certain subtidal areas for rock removal, as well as a change to the PCB cleanup standard for the upland remediation (from less than or equal to (≤ 2) 25 parts per million ("ppm") to less than ("<") 50 ppm PCB concentrations in soil). Certain mitigation measures were revised and clarified as were certain traffic routes.

For more information about CERCLA and NCP provisions regarding the SER and its incorporation into the 1998 ROD, see discussion beginning at page 4 of EPA's Final Determination for the South Terminal Project.

B. Community Impacts

Similar to the additional channel dredging work authorized in the Second Modification, because neither the disposal of the dredged sediment or the construction schedule are changing, no additional impacts to the community are anticipated from this additional dredging work. Increased vessel traffic will likely occur as a result of having to dredge and dispose of up to approximately 105,000 additional cubic yards of dredged sediment. All measures referenced in EPA's Final Determination to reduce impacts to the community from the South Terminal work remain in place. (See page 13 of the Final Determination; also see the Commonwealth's Construction Management Plan which

provides a detailed discussion of, among other things, management of traffic, noise, and dust.³)

Upland remediation of PCB-contaminated soil on the Radio Tower parcel will require the use of heavy equipment, may create increased truck traffic and potential air emissions from dust for a short period of time. Air monitoring will be conducted during these remedial activities and other site preparation work. Should levels exceed the action levels set forth in the South Terminal Air Monitoring Plan (Appendix A of the Final Determination), EPA will be notified and corrective action will be taken if necessary. Decontamination measures will prevent tracking of soil offsite, the Radio Tower parcel will be capped with Dense Graded Aggregate material, and land use will be restricted. In addition, the work will comply with all conditions contained in the Second Modification to the November 19, 2012 Toxic Substances Control Act ("TSCA") § 761.61(c) Determination") (Appendix E of this document) and with the Massachusetts hazardous waste cleanup program (M.G.L. c. 21E).

For a number of reasons explained below in section III.C, including the smaller magnitude of the event in duration, charge weight and compliance with all community protection measures previously used, EPA authorized blasting with conditions on August 20, 2014. Based on the post-blasting report provided to date by the Commonwealth, all community and water-based precautions were implemented and vibrations recorded during blasting were well below the limits for residential and historical structures.⁴

C. Resource Impacts

The Project modifications will impact waters of the U.S. and aquatic life; however, EPA has determined that the additional impacts that would result from the Project modifications do not change EPA's determination that the Project, subject to the conditions in the Final Determination, as modified, and in this Third Modification, complies with the Clean Water Act ("CWA") § 404(b)(1) guidelines ("CWA guidelines"), or that the South Terminal site represents the Least Environmentally Damaging Practical Alternative ("LEDPA"), since other alternatives are either not practicable or not less environmentally damaging; nor do they change EPA's conclusions regarding the Project's compliance with the other elements of the CWA guidelines. See Section VI.B.1. (CWA) for further discussion. Similarly, EPA has concluded that the Project modifications would not result in significant adverse effects on Essential Fish Habitat

³ The Construction Management Plan is found in the Administrative Record for the Second Modification at AR# 547287.

⁴ See Weekly Blast Report #1 for week 8-31-14 through 9-06-14, attachment to the Commonwealth's September 25 - 26, 2014 submission.

("EFH") or resources protected by the Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act ("FWCA"). See Section VI.B.4. (EFH/FWCA) below for further discussion.

The Atlantic sturgeon, an endangered species potentially present in the area, is not likely to be adversely affected by the modified Project provided that the specified mitigative measures to minimize the potential for entrainment and turbidity, and to minimize acoustical (pressure and impulse) impacts and maintain a zone of passage, are employed.⁵ See section VI.B.3 (Endangered Species Act "ESA") below for further discussion.

EPA has also concluded that the Project, as modified, will not affect the Palmer Island Light Station, a historic structure or the paleosol previously identified in the Final Determination. See Section VI.B.5 (National Historic Preservation Act "NHPA") below for further discussion.

Substituting the source of clean sand for use in mitigation measures at the OU3 pilot cap area, using clean sand generated from the additional channel widening dredging at the winter flounder mitigation area, and the use of appropriate clean parent material from any source in the Harbor will have no significant impact on aquatic resources or water quality provided the Commonwealth meets all the conditions in this Third Modification including continued compliance with the Final Mitigation Plan⁶ requirements for maintenance, performance standards and monitoring.

Similarly, allowing PCB-contaminated sediment and soils with concentrations <50 ppm to remain on the Radio Tower parcel and capping activities will have little impact on resources as long as the conditions set out in the Second Modified TSCA Determination (Appendix E) are met and the cleanup is conducted in accordance with M.G.L. c. 21E.

D. Public Comment

No public comment is required by CERCLA and its implementing regulations (see 40 CFR §300.435(c)(2)), and EPA has decided that a discretionary additional public comment period was not needed with respect to the Third Modification for several reasons, including:

(1) the Draft Determination along with its supporting Administrative Record, which was issued for public comment, included some discussion of the additional dredging and blasting that occurred in the winter of 2012-2013 as well as an evaluation of certain potential impacts and associated mitigation measures; the additional dredging and blasting and associated mitigation

⁵ In EPA's ESA consultation with the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service as part of the Final Determination, which included consideration of blasting and the expanded dredging, EPA concluded that these activities were not likely to adversely affect the roseate tern, also an endangered species potentially present in the area.

⁶ The Final Mitigation Plan can be found in the Final Determination Administrative Record at AR # 523889.

measures described in this Third Modification will be conducted within or adjacent to areas already authorized to be included in the Draft and Final Determination for the Project⁷;

- (2) the additional dredging and blasting are located within areas already authorized for dredging and blasting through the EPA's November 2012 Determination and the 2013 Second Modification;
- (3) the construction schedule for completing the South Terminal facility remains the same;
- (4) prior dredging work involving greater volumes, and blasting events in the winter of 2012-2013 of a greater magnitude in terms of duration, charge size, and thickness of rock, did not result in significant impacts to the community or land based structures or result in significant fish mortality; as such, EPA did not anticipate new or significant additional impacts to the surrounding community, land-based structures or significant fish mortality from this work;
- (5) the proponent held public meetings to describe its request to EPA for this additional work⁸; and
- (6) other consulting agencies were advised of the additional work and did not raise concerns.

E. Public Record

Since the issuance of the Final Determination, the Commonwealth has requested three modifications to the South Terminal Project. The First Modification, issued by EPA on February 4, 2013, corrected an inconsistency in the Final Determination between section II.2 of the Water Quality Performance Standards (Appendix C of the Final Determination) and section 20.0 H.2 of the Final Determination of Compliance with Section 404 of the Clean Water Act and Section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899 (Appendix E of the Final Determination) with regard to employment of an environmental monitor for the Project. That Modification is posted on EPA's New Bedford Harbor website at <u>www.epa.gov/nbh</u> and was incorporated into the Administrative Record for the Second Modification.

The Second Modification issued by EPA on September 30, 2013, increased the width of the navigational channel by 50 feet (for a total of 225 feet) and the length of the deep draft berthing area by 200 feet (for a total of 800 feet). It also included reconfiguration of CAD Cell 3 and authorized the use of blasting in certain subtidal areas for rock removal as well as a change to offsite disposal requirements for upland remediation of the main facility parcels (from greater than (">") 25 ppm to greater than or equal to (" \geq ") 50 ppm PCB concentrations in soil). Certain mitigation measures were revised and

Third Modification to EPA's Final Determination – South Terminal New Bedford Harbor State Enhanced Remedy

⁷The Final Determination did not evaluate impacts from blasting on the New Bedford/Fairhaven Hurricane Barrier, the Palmer Island Light Station, or the Atlantic sturgeon or other aquatic species; those impacts were evaluated in the Second Modification.

⁸ See the presentation slides from public meetings held by the Commonwealth on August 5 and September 2, 2014, at Attachment E of the Commonwealth's September 12, 2014 submission.

clarified as were certain traffic routes. The Second Modification, along with its Administrative Record, is also posted on EPA's New Bedford Harbor website at <u>www.epa.gov/nbh</u> and is available at the EPA Records Center and the New Bedford Public Library.

Documents submitted in support of the Commonwealth's request for this Third Modification as well as all documents EPA relied on are included in the Administrative Record for this Third Modification and can be found at <u>www.epa.gov/nbh</u> and at the EPA Records Center and the New Bedford Public Library. The Administrative Record for EPA's Final Determination for the South Terminal Project, the Administrative Record for the Second Modification, and the Administrative Records for the New Bedford Harbor Superfund Site are incorporated by reference into the Administrative Record for the Third Modification to EPA's Final Determination for the South Terminal Project.

F. Summary of Third Modification

- Expands the width of the navigational channel to the terminal from 225 feet to 300 feet, an expansion of 25 feet on the western edge of the channel and 50 feet on the eastern edge;
- Creates a uniform channel of -30 to -32 feet MLLW in the navigational channel;
- Eliminates the 100 foot wide, -14 MLLW tug channel;
- Incorporates the use of blasting for rock removal, which EPA authorized on August 20, 2014 and which began on September 3, 2014, within the previously designated navigational channel and tug channel subtidal areas;
- Creates 4.6 additional acres of winter flounder habitat at the winter flounder mitigation area;
- Clarifies upland remediation at the Radio Tower parcel to include offsite disposal of material containing PCB-concentrations greater than or equal to ("≥") 50 ppm, capping and a change from ancillary to heavy load use; and
- Incorporates two minor changes:
 - In January, 2014, EPA authorized substitution of the use of clean parent material dredged from another source in the Harbor as material for mitigation purposes, and this document continues that authorization provided certain conditions are met; and
 - o In March EPA authorized one additional blasting event.

The expanded dredging work will result in dredging of approximately 4.2 acres of previously undredged areas and 2.3 acres of areas already permitted for dredging to -14 MLLW for a total of 6.5 acres of additional dredging, generating approximately 105,000 additional cubic yards of dredged sediment. Of that amount, approximately 30,000 cubic yards is contaminated with PCB concentrations within a range of 1 to 50 ppm and will be disposed in CAD cell 3; the remaining approximately 75,000 cubic yards of clean parent material may be used as part of the expanded mitigation efforts at the winter flounder mitigation area or may be disposed of offshore under existing permits.

Blasting in September 2014 reduced approximately 3,000 cubic yards of subtidal rock to a smaller size; it will be removed during dredging activities.

The dredging volume table originally attached as Table 1 to the Final Determination has been revised and is attached as Table 1 to this document. A map depicting the reconfiguration of the navigational channel and tug channel to a 300 foot wide channel is attached as Figure 1 to this document. A map of the subtidal blasting areas is attached as Figure 2. A map of the additional winter flounder mitigation area is attached as Figure 3.

II. EPA Approval and Conditions

A. Approval and Conditions for Third Modification

Subject to the conditions and understandings set out herein, after review and consideration of all the information submitted by the Commonwealth, and after completing required consultations with all federal and state agencies, EPA has determined that the South Terminal Project, as modified by this Third Modification. which consists of additional dredging to reconfigure the 225 foot wide navigational channel and the 100 foot wide tug channel to a 300 foot wide channel, eliminating the tug channel, deepening the entire channel to a uniform depth of -30 to -32 MLLW, and associated additional blasting for rock removal, along with the clarifications and minor changes, remains both protective and meets the substantive requirements of the applicable and relevant and appropriate federal environmental laws that would normally apply as part of a permitting process. In addition, EPA accepts the Commonwealth's determination that the Project, as modified by the Third Modification, meets the applicable and relevant and appropriate state environmental standards. The Project, as modified, does not conflict with and is not inconsistent with the remedy. EPA reaffirms that the 1998 ROD, including the State Enhanced Remedy, as modified, remains protective of human health and the environment.

As a result, EPA is approving inclusion of the Project, as modified by the Third Modification, into the State Enhanced Remedy at the New Bedford Harbor Superfund Site which is subject to the permit exclusion found in Section 121(e) of CERCLA provided that the Commonwealth meets the following conditions:

1. Maintain compliance with all applicable or relevant and appropriate requirements ("ARARs")⁹ and performance standards in the Final Determination as modified by the First, Second and this Third Modification, including the

⁹ For ease of understanding, throughout this Third Determination, federal ARARs are also sometimes referred to as "applicable or relevant and appropriate federal environmental standards" and state ARARs are also sometimes referred to as "applicable or relevant and appropriate state environmental standards."

Revised Water Quality Performance Standards (Appendix C of the Second Modification), and the conditions in the TSCA Determinations in the Final Determination (Attachments J1 and J2), the First Modified TSCA Determination (Appendix D of the Second Modification to the Final Determination) and the Second Modification to the TSCA Determination, attached to this document at Appendix E;

- 2. All conditions set out in Section VI.B.1. (Clean Water Act) below;
- To protect the Atlantic sturgeon and other aquatic species, the conditions for dredging contained on page 2 of the April 18, 2013 consultation letter from EPA to the National Marine Fisheries Services ("NMFS")¹⁰ (Appendix B of the Second Modification);
- 4. The Revised Water Quality Performance Standards (See Appendix C of the Second Modification, Section II.5.b);
- 5. Clean material used for mitigation measures from any source in the Harbor must be appropriate for the proposed use and meet all the objectives contained in the Final Mitigation Plan, and if from a source other than that authorized in the Final Determination, must have prior written approval from EPA, and, if necessary, a new permit or a modification to an existing permit for offshore disposal must be secured; and
- 6. Submission for EPA review and approval of any workplans required by the Final Determination that require revision as a result of this Third Modification and any workplans required by this Third Modification, including those required by the Second Modified TSCA Determination.

In addition to the above, after receiving assurance from the Commonwealth that there would be no dredging below previously approved depths, EPA imposed the following conditions on the additional blasting in its August 20, 2014, approval letter¹¹:

- The additional blasting events remain as described in MassCEC's July 25 and August 14, 2014 submissions (with approximately 60 – 80 boreholes with delays, with a maximum total explosive charge of 136 lbs. per borehole) and includes a minimum 25 millisecond delay between charge detonations;
- 2. For compliance with TSCA, all contaminated material is removed and properly disposed in accordance with EPA's prior determinations for South Terminal;

¹⁰ The conditions for blasting in the April 18, 2013 letter were superseded by those set out in EPA's August 20, 2014 approval letter and Section VII.B.1(CWA) of the Second Modification.

¹¹ See section III.C of this document for more complete discussion.

- 3. Implement all mitigation and monitoring measures that are required prior to blasting events as described in EPA's Second Modification¹² to protect aquatic resources, including water quality monitoring, the fish deterrent system (including silt and bubble curtains), a fisheries observer on site, and monitoring for fish pre- and post-blasting except as modified below:
 - a. Condition No. 1: A final blasting plan must be submitted to and approved by EPA before blasting commences;
 - b. Condition No. 2: Blasting shall only be conducted in the locations depicted on Attachment B of the Commonwealth's August 14, 2014 letter to EPA (See Figure 2 of this document); the remainder of this condition is not applicable to the current blasting request;
 - c. Condition No. 7: The second paragraph of this condition is not applicable to the current blasting request;
 - d. Condition No. 8: No more than 136 pounds of explosive per delayed charge, with a minimum time delay of 25 milliseconds between charges shall be used; and
 - e. Condition No. 13: To protect the Hurricane Barrier, blasting must also be conducted consistent with the email dated August 15, 2014 from Michael Bachand, USACE to Chet Myers (see Attachment 6 of EPA's August 20, 2014 approval letter);
- 4. Implement all impact parameter and monitoring measures required for prior blasting events as described in EPA's Second Modification for impact on land structures and in water structures, including the historic Palmer Island Light Station and the Hurricane Barrier;
- 5. Implement all measures for public notice to landowners and mariners required for prior blasting events in accordance with EPA's Second Modification; and
- 6. MassCEC provides EPA with a post-blasting report similar to the weekly blasting reports provided from prior blasting events.

All deliverables required for EPA review and approval shall be submitted to Ginny Lombardo with copy to Cynthia Catri as directed in Section 20 of Appendix E of the Final Determination.

¹² See Section VII.B.1.2.e of the Second Modification.

III. Background and Description of Work

For a description of the State Enhanced Remedy (SER) process and the inclusion of navigational dredging and disposal as an enhancement in the 1998 ROD, see the 1998 ROD and the Final Determination.

Below is specific background information relative to the Commonwealth's third request to modify the Final Determination, as modified, to incorporate additional dredging work for the channel reconfiguration and associated blasting for rock removal. Information clarifying upland remediation work on the Radio Tower parcel and its changed use, and concerning minor changes relating to mitigation activities and the March 2014 blasting event are also provided in this section

A. Additional Dredging - Background

Based on safety concerns raised by maritime experts about the 225 foot wide navigational channel, the Commonwealth, on July 25, 2014, requested EPA approval of additional dredging to expand the width of the navigational channel to 300 feet and depth to a uniform -30 to -32 feet MLLW, elimination of the authorized tug channel, and approval to conduct blasting associated with these activities.

During design and construction of the South Terminal Project, the Commonwealth engaged a variety of maritime experts and professionals, including the U.S. Coast Guard and the Northeast Marine Pilots Association ("the Pilots"), in discussions about the design of a safe navigational channel for the terminal facility for its intended use to support the offshore wind industry and anticipated future cargo vessels.¹³ The Commonwealth states that the originally authorized 175 foot channel at -30 to -32 MLLW and 100 foot tug channel at -14 MLLW, was designed with input from the Pilots, tug operators and other maritime professionals and in accordance with U.S. standards for navigational channel design using the dimensions of a representative vessel (BBC Mississippi) that was 469 feet long and 75 feet wide, which was adequate to transport the type of wind industry components and cargo anticipated at the terminal. While the Pilots preferred as wide a channel as possible due to concerns about crabbing, the difficulty discerning between the deep draft channel area and shallower tug channel, and about buoy placement, a safe, commercial channel that minimized impacts on the environment was determined to be the 175 foot channel and 100 foot tug channel. See EPA's November 2012 Final Determination for the South Terminal Project for further discussion.

¹³ Massachusetts state law requires pilots to guide ships of certain size and with certain cargo, among other things, into areas of special interest within the waters of the Commonwealth. See M.G.L Chapter 103, Section 21; see also discussion on pages 3-4 of the Commonwealth's July 25, 2014 submission. In addition, the U.S. Coast Guard can impose safety measures on vessels if it determines they are necessary. See letter dated September 22, 2014, from Edward LeBlanc, U.S.C.G., attached to the Commonwealth's September 25 - 26, 2014 submission.

Subsequently, the Commonwealth acquired information about future vessels representative of both the offshore renewable energy industry (international and installation vessels) and anticipated future cargo vessels, which were larger and required deeper draft. Expressing its desire to accommodate such vessels and with adequate funding accessible, the Commonwealth again consulted with the Pilots and other maritime experts on the channel design, with the Pilots continuing to raise the same safety concerns with maneuvering such vessels in the channel.

As a result, the Commonwealth requested EPA approval to expand the deep draft dredging area an additional 200 feet to the north of the approved 600 foot area (at -30 to -32 MLLW) and to widen the channel an additional 50 feet to the west for a total channel width of 225 feet.

As explained in its March 2013 submission, a wider channel at deeper depths allows vessels to safely pass with a buffer on either side to accommodate drift caused by currents, wind forces, or navigational error or navigational drift and to avoid running aground when such forces could drive them off of the center of the channel. Similarly, a longer deep draft berthing area would be necessary to safely accommodate such vessels. On September 30, 2013, EPA approved the channel expansion to 225 feet wide. See EPA's Second Modification to the South Terminal Project.

In its July 25, 2014, submission in support of its request to expand the channel to a total width of 300 feet wide, the Commonwealth presented two significant developments that occurred during the last year. First, the Commonwealth stated it received confirmation in the winter of 2014 that a specific vessel, the Hansa Heavy-Lift P-2 Series (553 feet long and 83 feet wide), would be transporting monopoles and other foundational components of the wind turbines to the terminal. Second, the Commonwealth, in cooperation with the Pilots, commissioned the Maritime Simulation Institute ("MSI") to create a simulation model for the new terminal on which the Pilots conducted practice sessions to evaluate the methods for berthing and transiting vessels to the terminal. A variety of modelling scenarios were run in January, May, and August, 2014, the results of which are presented in the Commonwealth's July 25, 2014, and September 12, 2014 submissions. Essentially, the modelling confirmed the Pilot's safety concerns.

The January 2014 modelling effort simulated runs in a 225 wide channel with the 100 foot tug channel based on the representative BBC Mississippi vessel¹⁴ with 15 knot winds using both local 1000 horsepower, single screw tugs and using 3,000 horsepower twin screw tugs (which need deeper draft than 14 feet). Because the cranes are located on the left side of the vessel, the vessel was simulated entering the navigational channel

¹⁴ While unclear, it appears that the Commonwealth, at the time of the January 2014 modelling, had not yet received confirmation that the Hansa-Heavy Lift vessel would be used.

stern first to the terminal. The Pilots concluded the 225 foot channel with either tug did not provide an adequate margin of safety due to wind effects on the ship as it navigated the channel. The Pilots, upon review, asked that a southern turning basin be included in the channel design and that a navigational channel design expert review the existing design. Other maritime experts present during the modelling opined that 5,000 horsepower tractor tugs were needed. Tractor tugs have Z-drives which allow the tug to exert full force in any direction regardless of the tug position, an asset for maneuvering, and require 20-25 feet of draft.

The May 2014 modelling effort was recalculated to simulate the Hansa-Heavy Lift vessel within a 225 foot wide channel and a 300 foot channel using tractor tugs with 18 knot winds, both bow and stern first. The tugs used bow and stern lines to reduce the amount of lateral space needed within the channel. The consensus of the maritime professionals gathered in May, after reviewing the modelling results, was that a 225 foot wide channel did not provide a sufficient factor of safety for navigation but that a 300 foot channel would likely be sufficient.¹⁵ The Commonwealth included an email from Edward LeBlanc, Chief of the Waterways Management Division of the U.S. Coast Guard, in which he opined that, "I think we can all agree that "wider/deeper" equals better, in terms of safety and flexibility, but my sense from the MSI simulations that I observed is that a 300-foot wide channel at 30-foot depth, together with the application of appropriate mitigations such as tractor tugs, certain weather and tide parameters, and aids-to-navigation improvements, reduces navigation safety risk to an acceptable level." He recommended additional modelling with additional aids-to navigation built into the model by a more varied pool of pilots, captains, and tug operators under various conditions to confirm or disprove his opinion.¹⁶

A third modelling event occurred in August, 2014. The Commonwealth provided the modelling runs and a letter from Captain Bushy, Deputy Commissioner of Pilots - District 3, dated September 12, 2014, in which he states, "The modeling runs conducted at the Maritime Simulation Institute following the modifications made by MassCEC to the New Bedford Marine Commerce Terminal have indicated to me that the dimensions of the revised channel and new operation conditions are providing a safer passage of ships that are expected to call at the terminal in connection with the Cape Wind project." Captain Bushy goes on to state, "I can report that, with a high degree of confidence, that an adequate margin of safety exists in the proposed wider channel under the conditions referenced above and thereby recommend regulatory approval and construction of the widened channel to proceed." ¹⁷ The Commonwealth also represented that Captain

¹⁵ The Commonwealth did not provide a date but EPA assumes this meeting was held after the May modelling events occurred. Present at the meeting were five representatives from the Northeast Pilots and a group of experts, including Masters from the Massachusetts Maritime Academy, U.S.C.G., Captain Bushy, representatives from Cape Wind and its subcontractors, including EEW, Siemens, and the Captain of Baltship's Hansa vessel.

¹⁶ See Attachment N of the Commonwealth's July 25, 2014 submission.

¹⁷ See Attachment B of the Commonwealth's September 12, 2014 submission.

Third Modification to EPA's Final Determination – South Terminal New Bedford Harbor State Enhanced Remedy

Bushy, although aware of statements made by the Pilots, is not recommending a southern turning basin. The Commonwealth states it does not believe a turning basin is necessary. See Appendix A.

After evaluating the Commonwealth's submissions and confirming that re-initiation of consultation with federal agencies was not required,¹⁸ EPA is approving inclusion of the additional dredging work as part of the South Terminal Project provided that all ARARs and conditions contained in the Final Determination, as modified, and this Third Modification are met and maintained. See section VI.B below for more detailed discussion of ARARs.

B. Description of Dredging Work

The Commonwealth's new request includes a reconfiguration of the navigational channel and the tug channel, currently at different depths, into one navigational channel of a uniform depth of -30 to -32 MLLW. By expanding into areas already dredged and eliminating the need for a tug channel, only slightly more dredging is needed to bring the expanded 300 foot wide channel to a uniform depth range of -30 to -32 MLLW and aquatic impacts are minimized. However, there will be 6.5 acres of impacts. Of the total impact of 6.5 acres, 4.2 acres represent a temporary impact as the benthic community is expected to recover. Permanent impact of 2.3 acres is projected, as this quantity of winter flounder spawning habitat will be removed by the dredging. Additional mitigation for the 2.3 acres of permanent impact is required and is described below in section III.D. Dredging operations will be the same as described in the Final Determination. (See discussion in the Final Determination beginning on page 29.)

The additional dredging would extend west by 25 feet the navigational channel area authorized in the Final Determination, beginning at the federal turning basin and moving south to the northern end of the deep draft berthing area. The eastern expansion of 50 feet will occur entirely within the tug channel authorized in the Final Determination, beginning at the federal turning basin and moving south to the southern end of the deep draft berthing area. Approximately 30,000 cubic yards of contaminated sediment and approximately 75,000 cubic yards of clean sediment will be generated by this expansion. Contaminated sediment will be disposed in CAD cell 3; clean dredged material may be used for expanded mitigation activities at the winter flounder mitigation area or may be disposed of at the Rhode Island Sound Disposal Site under an existing permit. See maps at Figures 1 and 3.

The additional 25 foot width channel expansion will occur on the western, or landward, side of the 225 foot channel authorized in the Second Modification in areas that have historically been dredged, either by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (west of the

¹⁸See EPA's email to NMFS dated August 14, 2014 and NMFS's response dated August 15, 2014, (ESA consultation) and August 18, 2014 (EFH and FWCA consultations).

Turning Basin) or by the Commonwealth during construction of the boat basin that services the South Terminal facility. The section west of the turning basin is already at a depth of -28 to -30 MLLW; the section in front of the terminal is 20 to -28 MLLW. The eastern expansion of 50 feet wide will occur entirely within the existing tug channel, currently at -14 MLLW (some areas of the tug channel were at depths of -30 MLLW prior to EPA's authorization of the tug channel). This 50 foot wide area will be dredged to a uniform range of -30 to -32 MLLW; the remaining 50 feet of the original tug channel will not be dredged beyond the existing -14 feet MLLW and will become part of the side slope for the expanded channel.¹⁹

Disposal of approximately 30,000 cubic yards of contaminated sediment in CAD cell 3 will be conducted as described in the Final Determination. The Commonwealth, in its July 25, 2014 submission, describes that capacity to accommodate this additional approximately 30,000 cubic yards of material in CAD cell 3 exists due to self-compaction of material placed to date within the CAD and because the volume of the actual amount of previously dredged contaminated material disposed of in the CAD was less than the amount estimated during the design phase of the Project.²⁰

C. Blasting - Background

The July 25, 2014 submission also included a request for additional blasting as a rock removal method associated with the requested expansion. The Commonwealth requested that the blasting be authorized to occur prior to September 1, 2014 for several reasons including the continued presence of blasting equipment in the area, the fact that clean overburden material has not yet been dredged within the proposed blasting areas, and the project construction schedule. In the Second Modification, EPA authorized the use of blasting as a rock removal method in three areas during construction of the terminal bulkhead and channel dredging. That approval was based on, among other things, mitigation measures that would be taken, the results from a JASCO Applied Sciences acoustic model which described peak pressure and impulse impact thresholds for explosive charges up to 150 pounds, and input from state and federal agencies, including the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers regarding impacts to the Hurricane Barrier, from NMFS regarding impacts to the Atlantic sturgeon, an endangered species, as well as other aquatic life, and from the Massachusetts Historical Commission regarding impacts to the Palmer Island Light Station. See EPA's Second Modification.

Given the compressed time period, EPA agreed to review the request for blasting on an accelerated basis provided that the Commonwealth submitted sufficient information for EPA to determine that, without further dredging, the requested blasting activities associated with the expanded channel would not result in greater depth or width in the

¹⁹ See Attachments P-1 of the Commonwealth's July 25, 2014 submission for a cross section of the east and west expansion area side slopes.

²⁰ See pages 10-11 of the Commonwealth's July 25, 2014 submission.

channel beyond that which was already authorized by EPA in its Second Modification. In its August 14, 2014, submission, the Commonwealth provided further information and, based on that information and as explained below, on August 20, 2014, EPA determined that the requested blasting would not alter the currently authorized channel configuration and could proceed within the requested timeframe. See Appendix B.

In its submissions, the Commonwealth described the additional blasting to be conducted in areas located completely within the authorized navigational channel, the tug channel and associated side slopes of those channels. Blasting would occur in two areas along the western side of the navigational channel and in one larger area in the tug channel with several smaller areas located in the southeast corner of the tug channel. The total volume of the rock to be removed was estimated to be approximately 3,000 cubic yards over an area of approximately 27,000 square feet. The maximum charge weight per delay was limited to 136 pounds. Further details of the work is included in the Commonwealth's July 25 and August 14, 2014 submittals. See Figure 2 for a map of the blasting areas.

Because the requested blasting would occur during certain time periods of restricted inwater work established to protect various aquatic resources, EPA coordinated with NMFS prior to issuing its determination. Due to the use of the fish deterrent systems, prior success with blasting (i.e. no large fish mortalities) and the reduced scope of the proposed blasting (smaller area, fewer and smaller charges), NMFS determined that reinitiation of consultation under ESA, EFH and FWCA was not required. In addition, given the shift in two proposed blasting locations closer to the Palmer Island Light Station, EPA requested the Commonwealth to either update or confirm the information and conclusions reached by its contractor for prior blasting events about the anticipated impact of the additional proposed blasting on the Light Station. EPA also required the Commonwealth to provide documentation from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers that it was aware of the proposed blasting and its determination about potential impacts on the Hurricane Barrier. The Commonwealth provided the requested information (see discussions below in sections VI.B.5 and VI.B.6 of this document).

As a result, EPA issued its August 20, 2014 determination based on a description of the additional blasting work contained in the Commonwealth's July 25, 2014 submission, a review of weekly blasting reports from prior blasting events which showed no significant amount of fish mortality, consideration of supporting material provided by the Commonwealth in its August 14, 2014 submission including calculated anticipated viration levels at the Palmer Island Light Station that were significantly below the limiting vibration levels for historic structures, and input from other federal agencies. A number of conditions were Included in EPA's August 20, 2014 determination, including mitigation measures to protect the surrounding community and aquatic and land-based resources, an approved blasting work plan, and a post-blasting report. See Appendix B

for more complete discussion of EPA's determination with regard to additional blasting. See also footnote 3.

D. Additional Mitigation

Dredging associated with the channel expansion will impact 6.5 acres of subtidal habitat, including 2.3 acres of winter flounder spawning habitat in an area authorized for dredging to a shallower depth in the Final Determination but which will now be dredged to a depth that will destroy this habitat area. The Commonwealth estimates that an additional 128,066 shellfish will be impacted which represents an increase of 1.4% of the total number of shellfish impacted by the South Terminal Project (estimated to be 9,285,300). Mitigation for impacts to winter flounder spawning habitat consists of expanding the winter flounder mitigation area an additional 4.6 acres which will compensate for the additional impacts resulting from the channel expansion. EPA believes that the shellfish mitigation program established under the Final Determination is adequate to compensate for the additional shellfish impacts resulting from the Final Determination area is attached as Figure 3. Additional discussion of mitigation measures may be found in section VI.B.4 (EFH and FWCA) below.

IV. Clarification of Upland Remediation on Radio Tower Parcel and Changed Use

In the Second Modification to the Final Determination, EPA determined that onsite disposal of upland soils and sediment with identified PCB concentrations < 50 ppm in the area depicted on Attachment 6 of the First Modification to the November 19, 2012 TSCA Determination (see Appendix D of Second Modification to Final Determination) would not pose an unreasonable risk of injury to health or the environment provided the conditions in the First Modification to the November 19, 2012 TSCA Determination were met.

Although requested at the time, EPA did not have sufficient information about potential PCB contamination on the Radio Tower parcel to include it in the First Modification of the November 19, 2012 TSCA Determination; however the document provided that the Commonwealth could, in the future, provide information about PCB concentrations and, if > 1 ppm, provide a proposed cleanup plan in accordance with 40 CFR Part 761 to EPA for review and approval.

Subsequent sampling and analysis of the Radio Tower parcel revealed concentrations of PCB contaminated soil \geq 50 ppm located in the northeastern corner of the parcel.²¹ A

²¹ The Commonwealth reports that sampling and analysis for PCBs took place on a 25-foot grid across the parcel. In locations where samples collected on the 25-foot grid indicated concentrations of PCBs above 50 mg/kg (or ppm), additional samples were collected on five-foot intervals surrounding that sampling

map of this location, also referred to as DGA-10, is Attachment 3 to Appendix E of this document. The Commonwealth submitted a final work plan that calls for excavation and offsite disposal of identified \geq 50 ppm PCB-contaminated soils, site grading, capping the entire site with a three-foot thick Dense Graded Aggregate cap, fencing and an activity and use limitation. During these activities, dust suppression measures will be used as necessary and air monitoring will be conducted to ensure emission levels do not exceed the protective levels set out in the air monitoring performance standards for the project.²²

Because EPA is satisfied, based on the sampling conducted, that the PCB concentrations are representative of site conditions within the DGA-10 area, the identified \geq 50 ppm PCB-contaminated materials will be excavated and transported offsite for disposal at an appropriately licensed facility without the need for confirmatory sampling following excavation. The lateral extent and depth of excavations are shown on Attachment 4 of Appendix E of this document. The three-foot thick cap of Dense Graded Aggregate cover, used for the main facility parcels which also contain similar concentrations of PCB contamination, will be extended to cover the Radio Tower parcel. The parcel will also be fenced and future land use restrictions will be put in place. Any maintenance requirements for the proposed work shall be incorporated into the long-term monitoring plan for the site. Finally, TSCA decontamination regulations will apply to all work conducted on this parcel. EPA has determined that the proposed activities will not pose an unreasonable risk of injury to health or the environment. A Second Modification to the November 19, 2012 TSCA Determination is attached as Appendix E.

All upland remediation activities will be conducted in compliance with the M.G.L. c. 21E cleanup program as described in the Final Determination.

The Commonwealth has provided a letter from the current parcel owner securing access to conduct required remedial work.²³

The Final Determination identified the Radio Tower parcel's intended use to be as an ancillary parcel needed for storage of equipment to support the offshore wind industry once the Commonwealth obtained ownership. This intended use was due to the anticipated lower load bearing capacity given the anticipated one foot cap of clean material conceptually planned for the parcel. However, the presence of contamination on the parcel and the resulting need to construct a minimum three-foot thick Dense Graded Aggregate cap enables the Commonwealth to transform this parcel into one capable of supporting heavy loads. The Second Modification to the TSCA Determination, Appendix E, acknowledges this changed use and requires that certain

location. Borings were also advanced within the areas where high concentrations of PCBs were identified in order to vertically delineate the contamination. See the final Remedial Work Plan for PCB Remedial Activities and Soil Management Plan, dated September 27, 2014.

²² See Appendix A of EPA's Final Determination for the South Terminal Project.

²³ See attachment to the Commonwealth's submission dated September 25, 2014.

conditions, including minimum capping and long-term monitoring requirements, be met.

V. Post-Final Determination Minor Changes

A. Source Material for Mitigation Measures

A minor change made during the course of construction of the South Terminal Project allowed the substitution of the use of clean parent material dredged from another source in the Harbor as material for mitigation purposes, and this document continues that authorization provided EPA is given prior notice and provides written approval, the material is appropriate for its intended use and meets the objectives of the Final Mitigation Plan, and is appropriate for the proposed use, all permits for offshore disposal are modified as necessary.

In early January 2014, the Commonwealth discovered that the clean parent bottom of dredge material, generated from dredging of the navigational channel and the Gifford Street boat basin, that was to be used for capping the OU3 mitigation area (located just south of the Hurricane Barrier) was too rocky to be effectively hydraulically placed and the shallow water depths in the mitigation area limited other potential placement options. It requested substitution of the clean parent material dredged from the bottom of EPA's lower harbor CAD cell (Phase 1) for use as the capping material and that the clean, rocky material be disposed offshore under an existing permit.

EPA reviewed information provided by the Commonwealth²⁴ as well as relevant data EPA gathered during design and construction completed to date on the ower harbor CAD cell. In late January 2014, EPA authorized the substitution of the source of clean, parent material for mitigation purposes at the OU3 pilot cap area provided that certain conditions were met. EPA's approval with conditions is attached as Appendix C.

Because the use of clean, parent material for mitigation measures was already included in the mitigation measures discussed during consultation with NMFS in the Final Determination, no further consultation was necessary.

This Third Modification also authorizes other substitution of clean, parent material dredged from sources in the Harbor for use in mitigation areas provided that all conditions in this Third Modification are met.

²⁴ See email dated January 10, 2014 from Chet Myers to EPA; email dated January 15, 2014 from EPA to Chet Myers; and the Commonwealth's submission dated January 16, 2014.

B. Single Blasting Event in March 2014

EPA also authorized, during the course of the Project construction, a single additional blasting event, as a minor change.

After completing the blasting program authorized in the Second Modification, in a February 2014 letter to EPA, the Commonwealth represented that subsequent excavation revealed that a small portion of rock remained in an area of the thickest known quantity of rock along the edge of the bulkhead. Mechanical attempts to remove the rock failed, leaving blasting as a last resort.²⁵ Given its construction schedule, the Commonwealth requested that this single blasting event occur during certain time periods of restricted in-water work established to protect various aquatic resources.

The rock to be blasted was described to be approximately 50 feet in length, ranging in width from approximately two to 10 feet, and approximately 16 feet thick at its thickest point, for a total volume of approximately 125 cubic yards. An estimated six to 12 holes would be required, each loaded with approximately 32 pounds per delay.

After conducting its review of information provided by the Commonwealth and coordinating with NMFS,²⁶ EPA determined that the requested blasting event was smaller than the series of blasts that were conducted by the Commonwealth in the same general area over the winter. EPA also reviewed the pre- and post-blasting reports from the larger prior blasting events which included a fish deterrent system, a fisheries observer on site and monitoring and noted there was no significant amount of fish mortality observed as a result of those blasts. The blasting reports also included vibration monitoring results which showed that all readings from the winter blasting events were below the allowable limits for historic, residential and other structures, including the hurricane barrier.²⁷

On the basis of the above findings, and after ensuring with NMFS that re-initiation of consultation was not required, EPA determined that this single blasting event was a minor change to the Project and that the Project continues to meet the substantive requirements of all identified ARARs provided certain conditions were met. A copy of EPA's March 7, 2014 approval with conditions is attached as Appendix D.

²⁵ See letter dated February 28, 2014 from Bill White, MassCEC, to Elaine Stanley, EPA.

²⁶ See series of emails from February 28, 2014 to March 7, 2014.

²⁷ See attachment C to the Commonwealth's August 14, 2014 submission for a compilation of the blasting reports for the winter of 2012-2013. See also attachment C of that submission for the blasting report for the March 2013 blasting event.

VI.CERCLA Statutory Requirements

A. CERCLA § 121 Factors

The Project, as modified, does not conflict with and is not inconsistent with the New Bedford Harbor Superfund remediation, and EPA reaffirms that the 1998 ROD, including the State Enhanced Remedy, remains protective of human health and the environment. The dredging work will sequester an additional 30,000 cubic yards of contaminated sediment that would not otherwise be addressed by the Superfund dredging since it is below Superfund cleanup levels in the lower harbor. This work continues to enhance the 1998 ROD by further reducing the availability of PCB contamination to aquatic life, particularly those that bioaccumulate PCBs, which has led to the Site's risk from consumption of fish. Similarly, the upland remediation work on the Radio Tower parcel continues to address contaminated soil and sediment through TSCA and the state cleanup program that would not otherwise be addressed in the foreseeable future if this Project did not occur. See page 41 of the Final Determination and page 27 of the Second Amendment for more detailed discussion about the protectiveness of the Project. As long as the conditions contained in the Final Determination as modified by the First and Second Modification and this Third Modification are implemented and maintained, the Project will not adversely affect human health or the environment.

Consistent with the Final Determination findings, as modified by the First and Second Modification, the work described in this Third Modification does not change or alter EPA's determinations set out on page 42 of EPA's Final Determination that disposing of the additional dredged contaminated material in CADs will permanently isolate this sediment from human and environmental receptors by containing it in perpetuity using a safe and protective technology, and that CADs, although not using treatment of the PCB-contaminated sediment as a principal element, provide protection against site risks posed by these sediments by removing and permanently isolating the sediment.

The Commonwealth has not provided cost information for this Third Modification work; however, no Superfund money will be used to finance the work.

A detailed discussion of how the work described in this Third Modification complies with ARARs follows below.

B. Significant Substantive Requirements

As stated in the Final Determination, because EPA has integrated the State Enhanced Remedy into the 1998 ROD, this Project, and any modification to it, must comply with §121(d) of CERCLA and §300.450 of the NCP which requires the work to meet the substantive requirements of all ARARs. See page 43 of the Final Determination for a general overview of ARARs.

EPA has re-evaluated the Project as modified by this Third Modification for compliance with ARARs. While no additional federal ARARs were identified, additional analysis and consultations were required pursuant to the ARARs identified in the Final Determination. After completing this analysis and concluding all required consultation, EPA has determined, as set out below, that the Project as modified by this Third Modification complies with all ARARs provided all conditions contained in the Final Determination, as modified by the First and Second Modification and this Third Modification, are met and maintained. The Commonwealth has concluded that the determinations related to the state ARARs identified in Appendix D to the Final Determination do not need to be revised or supplemented to address the Project modifications, and that the potential impacts from this work are already addressed through the state standards described in Appendix D to the Final Determination.²⁸

In addition, there are public safety regulations that are not under the jurisdiction of EPA, which govern the planned activities including Department of Transportation, Coast Guard, and Homeland Security regulations as well as Occupational Safety and Health Administration rules. This Project shall comply with those regulations and shall also comply with Massachusetts Explosive Regulations at 527 CMR 13. The Commonwealth shall ensure its contractors secure all necessary federal, state and local permits required by these regulations.

1. Section 404 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. §1344)

As discussed in the Final Determination, aquatic impacts associated with the discharge of dredged or fill material into waters of the U.S., including secondary impacts associated with the filling such as dredging and rock removal, are evaluated for compliance with the Clean Water Act § 404(b)(1) guidelines. The additional impacts that would result from the proposed Project modifications do not change EPA's determination that the Project, subject to the conditions in the Final Determination, as modified, and in this Third Modification, complies with the applicable CWA guidelines. The expanded dredging and blasting do not change EPA's determination that the South Terminal site represents the LEDPA, since other alternatives are either not practicable or not less environmentally damaging, nor do they change EPA's conclusions regarding the Project's compliance with the other elements of the CWA guidelines, as discussed below.

1. Expanded Dredging

Expanded Dredging. The expanded dredging will result in a greater areal impact to the soft bottom benthos, but this is considered temporary as the substrate will not change,

²⁸ See email dated August 14, 2014 from Phil Weinberg, MassDEP to Bill White, CEC which is attachment I-1 to the Commonwealth's August 14, 2014 submission.

just the depth. Recovery of the disturbed areas by benthic creatures will start immediately after the construction stops, and the benthic infaunal community will likely be fully recovered within a 3-5 year time period. Winter flounder feed on clams, worms, and other members of this community, so its loss also represents a temporary impact to winter flounder. However, due to the relatively rapid recovery of this community and the relatively small size of the area (compared to the area available for winter flounder foraging), it does not represent a significant impact. Water quality impacts will be monitored to ensure that state water quality standards are not violated, but some level of degradation in the immediate vicinity of the dredge will occur. The expanded dredging will increase the duration of the dredging, but significant water quality impacts are not anticipated from the additional dredging.

The Commonwealth has minimized impacts by confining its request for additional dredging to the minimum channel width and depth considered to provide safe passage for the expected vessels according to the consensus of the maritime experts MassCEC consulted.

The expanded dredging will eliminate an additional 2.3 acres of winter flounder habitat by increasing the depth of substrate beyond that typically utilized by winter flounder for spawning. Even with the expanded dredging, EPA continues to believe that the Project will not cause or contribute to significant degradation of waters of the U.S. In addition, the expanded dredging will not meaningfully increase impacts on water quality and associated effects from elevated turbidity on fish and benthic species, because it will be subject to the same water quality performance standards as the previously approved dredging. Those standards are set forth in Appendix C of the Second Modification to the Final Determination. Finally, the Commonwealth has agreed to provide additional mitigation to address the additional impacts to winter flounder habitat, consistent with the CWA guidelines. Specifically, the Commonwealth will expand the winder flounder mitigation area by 4.6 acres (a 2:1 acreage ratio of mitigation to impact area).

2. Blasting

EPA evaluated the potential environmental impacts associated with the proposed additional blasting program based on information presented in the Commonwealth's request for additional blasting, dated July 25, 2014, and supplemental information submitted on August 14, 2014; EPA's analysis and the conclusions reached in the Second Modification of the Final Determination; and the results of the previous blasting program. The previous blasting program did not result in substantial adverse environmental impacts. The proposed additional blasting would occur in the same general area as the previous blasting program and would utilize the same mitigative measures to minimize impacts as the previous blasting program (clean overburden left in place; pre- and post-blast fish monitoring; fish deterrence, including a startle system, silt curtains, and bubble curtains to deter fish and reduce pressure and impulse impacts). In addition, the maximum charge weight for the proposed blasting program would be smaller, and the duration of blasting would be shorter, further minimizing likely impacts below those of the previous blasting program. For these reasons, EPA concluded that the proposed additional blasting program would not result in significant adverse environmental impacts, and authorized the additional blasting program in our letter dated August 20, 2014, subject to the conditions specified in that letter. (Appendix B, and described above.)

3. Winter Flounder Mitigation

As compensatory mitigation for the additional impacts to the aquatic ecosystem resulting from the expanded channel dredging, the Commonwealth will expand the winter flounder spawning habitat mitigation area by 4.6 acres. The Commonwealth will place clean material in areas that are currently deeper than what winter flounder prefer for spawning. The addition of material will elevate the bottom resulting in depths that winter flounder will preferably utilize for spawning.

The expanded dredging will result in a greater areal impact to the soft bottom benthos, but this is considered temporary as the substrate will not change, just the depth. Recovery of the disturbed areas by benthic creatures will start immediately after the construction stops, and the benthic infaunal community will likely be fully recovered within a 3-5 year time period. The expanded dredging will have temporary impacts on the benthic infaunal community. Winter flounder feed on clams, worms and other members of this community, so its loss also represents a temporary impact to winter flounder. However, due to the relatively rapid recovery of this community and the relatively small size of the area (compared to the area available for winter flounder foraging), it does not represent a significant impact.

Section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899 (33 U.S.C. §403) Public Interest Review; Navigation and Navigable Waters (33 U.S.C. §408)

For the reasons discussed above, the proposed changes for additional dredging and blasting do not alter EPA's evaluations in the Final Determination and Second Modification of the Beneficial and Detrimental Impacts to the Environment and the Public Interest under § 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899.

Therefore, there is no change in EPA's conclusion in the Final Determination and the Second Modification that, after weighing the positive and negative impacts associated with this Project, EPA has determined that the South Terminal Project is not contrary to the overall public interest.

3. Endangered Species Act (16 U.S.C. §1531 et seq.)

For the Second Modification, EPA reinitiated consultation with NMFS on the potential effects of the requested expanded dredging and blasting on the Atlantic sturgeon. During consultation, EPA described the potential impacts from expanded dredging and blasting and EPA's conclusion that while these activities may affect the Atlantic sturgeon, they were unlikely to adversely affect the species either on its own or when combined with the other impacts associated with this Project, due in large part to the limited presence of the sturgeon in the area and the mitigative measures that will be employed. NMFS concurred with EPA's determination that the Project, including the additional dredging and rock blasting, is not likely to adversely affect the Atlantic sturgeon provided that the specified mitigative measures to minimize the potential for entrainment and turbidity, and to minimize acoustic impacts and maintain a zone of passage, are employed. See Appendix B and Section VII.B.1 of the Second Modification for mitigation measures.

In response to the Commonwealth's third modification request, EPA again contacted NMFS on August 14, 2014 about the potential adverse impacts to Atlantic sturgeon from the additional blasting and expanded dredging. Based on the Commonwealth's continued use of the fish deterrent system, its successful (i.e. no large fish mortalities) blasting previously in this system, a reduced blasting scope and the limited presence of Atlantic sturgeon in this system, EPA concluded that potential effects from this modification would not require re-initiation of consultation under ESA. On August 15, 2014, NMFS agreed that re-initiation was not required.

4. Essential Fish Habitat Assessment under the Magnuson-Stevens Act (16 U.S.C. §§ 1851 et seq.) and Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act (16 U.S.C. §661-677e)

EPA reinitiated consultation with NMFS under the Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation and Management Act and the FWCA on the potential effects of the additional dredging and blasting on EFH and on fish and wildlife resources protected by FWCA for the Second Modification. EPA concluded that the additional dredging would not result in additional adverse effects on EFH or resources protected by FWCA, since it would not cause any additional loss of winter flounder spawning habitat, and it would be subject to the same water quality performance standards as the previously approved dredging. EPA also concluded that with time of year restrictions on blasting consistent with NMFS's recommendations, and with additional conditions requiring implementation of a fish deterrent system, the potential for fish to be within the impact area would be minimized to the greatest extent possible. Further, EPA identified conditions it intended to impose on the maximum charge weight per delay and the minimum delay time between charges to ensure no adverse pressure and impulse effects on fish. In response to the Commonwealth's third modification request, EPA contacted NMFS on August 14, 2014 to discuss potential adverse impacts to EFH and species covered under the FWCA. EPA reviewed the potential impacts from the additional blasting and expanded dredging and the proposed mitigation and concluded that the Commonwealth had reasonably minimized impacts to EFH and FWCA resources. On August 18, 2014, NMFS agreed that impacts to EFH had been reasonably minimized and no further consultation was required, provided that there was additional compensatory mitigation for the additional loss of winter flounder spawning habitat.

5. National Historic Preservation Act (16 U.S.C. § 470, 36 CFR Part 800)

The Project modifications do not alter EPA's determination, set forth in Appendix G of EPA's Final Determination, that the Project will not affect historic properties.

The expanded dredging areas included in this Third Modification will be conducted within areas that the Commonwealth represents have already been evaluated in archeological surveys performed as part of this Project, or are in areas that have been dredged as part of the SER or South Terminal Project work.

EPA has reviewed the archeological investigations in relation to the proposed additional dredging and the previously identified paleosols area. (See Figure 4 for map of areas of archeological survey.) The paleosols are located between the former Gifford Street boat ramp and the southern edge of the newly constructed terminal facility. (See Figure 5 for a mapped location of the paleosols area.) The expanded dredge area, although expanding laterally both east and west of the already authorized navigational channel, does not extend any further south than previously authorized dredging areas. The southern end of the 25 foot western lateral expansion stops north of the existing Shuster property; the southern end of the edge of the newly constructed terminal. Neither expansion area is closer to the paleosol area than previously authorized dredging. See Figure 1.

PCB-remediation activities and other site related cleanup work will be conducted on the Radio Tower parcel which is located significantly north of the former dwellings in the former Acushnet Mills company housing area, previously identified as an area of archeological interest. (See Attachment 1 of Appendix G to the FD.) Prior to issuing its August 20, 2014 approval of the blasting portion of the Commonwealth's request,²⁹ EPA reviewed the vibrations recorded in the blasting reports from prior blasting events, all of which were below the allowable limits for historic, residential and other structures (including the Palmer Island Light Station and the hurricane barrier). EPA also reviewed an updated technical memorandum from the Commonwealth's contractor, GZA, regarding anticipated impacts of the additional proposed blasting on the Light Station.

²⁹ See Appendix B to this Third Modification.

GZA calculated the anticipated vibration levels would be significantly below the limiting vibration of <0.5 in/sec.³⁰

Also, because the Light Station is owned and maintained by the City of New Bedford, EPA requested and the Commonwealth provided a letter dated August 11, 2014 from the New Bedford Harbor Development Commission ("HDC") expressing its satisfaction with the precautions instituted to protect the Light Station.³¹

After considering the calculations performed by the Commonwealth's consultant, the Commonwealth's July 25 and August 14, 2014 submissions to EPA in support of this modification, and in light of the actions that have been taken and would continue to be taken in accordance with the conditions set out in EPA's September 16, 2013 letter to Brona Simon, State Historic Preservation Officer ("the SHPO") and EPA's August 20, 2014 letter, EPA determined in its August 20, 2014 letter that the proposed blasting would not change its conclusion set out in EPA's Second Modification for the South Terminal Project that this Project will not affect the Palmer Island Light Station.

The SHPO was copied on EPA's August 20, 2014 determination that approval of the proposed additional blasting would have no effect on the Palmer Island Light Station.

6. Navigation and Navigable Waters, 33 U.S.C. § 408

With regard potential impacts on the New Bedford/Fairhaven Hurricane Barrier, the Commonwealth provided two emails from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers ("the USACE") which reflect that the USACE had no objection to the additional blasting work provided the work was done following the same protocols established in its previous 33 U.S.C. § 408 approval letter. See page 4 and footnote 7 of EPA's August 20, 2014 letter, Appendix B of this document.

7. Toxic Substances Control Act (15 U.S.C.§ 2601 et seq.) PCB Remediation Waste (40 CFR §761.61(c))

Inclusion of additional blasting in the Project does not require a modification of past TSCA Determinations since all contaminated sediment will be removed prior to blasting activities. However, because additional dredging and disposal of PCB- contaminated sediment and removal of additional upland soil is included in this Third Modification to the Final Determination, EPA had to re-evaluate its determination made in the TSCA Determination included as Appendix J(1) in the Final Determination and the First Modified TSCA Determination included as Appendix D to the Second Modification of the Final Determination. After reviewing the Commonwealth's submissions, EPA has

³⁰ The blasting reports from the winter of 2012 – 2013 and March 2013 are Attachments C and D of the Commonwealth's August 14, 2014, submission. The GZA technical memorandum dated August 13, 2014 is Attachment G of that same submission.

³¹See Attachment H of the Commonwealth's August 14, 2014 submission.

determined that, provided the conditions in the Second Modified TSCA Determination (Appendix E of this document) are met, the work described in this Third Modification will not pose an unreasonable risk of injury to health and the environment.

Dredging and disposal into CAD cell 3 of approximately 30,000 cubic yards of PCBcontaminated sediment generated during the deepening and widening of the navigational channel will be conducted as described in the Final Determination. The Water Quality Performance Standards remain the same (see Appendix C of the Second Modification to the Final Determination). There is no proposed change to the capping of CAD cell 3; the Commonwealth has indicated that inclusion of this additional sediment into CAD cell 3 would not require further expansion of the CAD because the additional capacity would be generated by self-compression of the sediment within the CAD cell, and because the volume of the actual amount of previously dredged contaminated material disposed of in the CAD was less than the amount estimated during the design phase of the Project. A map showing the expansion areas to be dredged is attached as Figure 1 to this Second Modification to the Final Determination.

With respect to the remediation of PCB-contaminated soils at the Radio Tower parcel and the changed use to heavy loading, PCB-contaminated soils with \geq 50 ppm will be excavated with offsite disposal and the parcel will be capped with a minimum three-foot thick Dense Graded Aggregate cover. Finally, the parcel will be fenced and land use restricted. These proposed activities are consistent with the activities that were approved for the main terminal facility under the November 19, 2012, TSCA Determination and the First Modified TSCA Determination.

EPA has reviewed the Commonwealth's submissions regarding the proposed work and has determined that disposal of the identified additional < 50 ppm PCB-contaminated sediments into CAD cell #3 and onsite disposal of upland soils with PCB concentrations < 50 ppm will not pose an unreasonable risk of injury to health or the environment provided the conditions in the Second Modified TSCA Determination (Appendix E to this document) are met.

8. Section 402 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. §1342)

The Project modifications will not result in additional impacts on stormwater. Therefore, EPA's previous conclusion under Section 402 of the Clean Water Act is unchanged.

9. Section 176(C) Of The Clean Air Act General Conformity Rule Review (42 U.S.C. § 7506(c), 40 CFR Part 93, Subpart B) 42 U.S.C. § 7412, 40 CFR Parts 61 and 63 (NESHAPs)

The Project modifications will not result in additional effects on air quality. Therefore EPA's previous conclusion under the Clean Air Act General Conformity Rule that a conformity determination is not required for EPA's authorization of this Project, is

unchanged.

EPA's conclusion under Parts 61 and 63 is also unchanged.

- c. Executive Orders and Policies
 - Consultation and Coordination with Indian Tribal Governments Executive Order (E.O. 13175)
 EPA Policy for the Administration of Environmental Programs on Indian Reservations (1984)
 EPA Policy on Consultation and Coordination with Indian Tribes (May 4, 2011)

Additional dredging and blasting were within the scope of potential impacts included in EPA's consultation with the Tribes before the Final Determination was issued.

The Tribes were copied on EPA's August 20, 2014 letter to the SHPO regarding its conclusion that blasting would not impact the Palmer Island Light Station.

2. Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations, (E.O. 12898)

The Project modifications may result in a small amount of additional traffic during remediation of the Radio Tower parcel. Air monitoring will be conducted continuously during the work and any additional noise impacts are expected to be minimal. The community may have experienced some vibrations during blasting. Vessels were required to avoid the area when blasting events occurred. Appropriate notice and protection measures for the community, for vessels and for structures were in place prior to any blasting activities pursuant to the Commonwealth's Operational Blasting Plan. Because previously authorized dredging is ongoing and the additional dredging has not caused a change to the construction schedule, any community impacts are expected to be insignificant. Therefore, EPA's conclusion, that the Project is not expected to háve disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects on low-income or minority populations, as set forth in Appendix M of EPA's Final Determination, is unchanged.

3. Floodplain Management Executive Order (E.O. 11988)

The Project modifications will not result in additional effects on the floodplain. Therefore EPA's analysis under the Floodplain Management Executive Order set forth in Appendix L of EPA's Final Determination is unchanged.

4. Wetland Executive Order (E.O. 11990)

The Project modifications will not result in additional effects on wetlands. Therefore EPA's analysis under the Wetlands Executive Order set forth in Appendix J of EPA's Final Determination is unchanged.

5. Invasivé Species Executive Order (E.O. 13112)

The Project modifications will not result in additional effects related to invasive species. Therefore EPA's analysis under the Invasive Species Executive Order set forth in Appendix N of EPA's Final Determination is unchanged.

Issued by:

Date:

James T. Owens III Director, Office of Site Remediation and Restoration Third Modification to EPA's Final Determination for the South Terminal Project New Bedford State Enhanced Remedy

Figure 1

Map of 300' Reconfigured Navigation and Tug Channels




50 Foot Expansion to the East And Elimination of Tug Channel

HURRICANE BARRIE

-14 TO -20 MLLW -20 TO -25 MLLW -25 TO -28 MLLW -25 TO -28 MLLW -28 TO -30 MLLW

-30 MLLW & DEEPER

Figure 2

Map of Additional Blast Areas

.



Figure 3

Map of Additional Winter Flounder Mitigation Areas

· . .



Figure 4

Map of Archeological Survey Areas

.



ŕ

Figure 5

Map of Paleosol Area



.

Table 1

Sediment Volume and Disposal Locations

-											•						
,					•												
•				_				rial to bo	Drodgod			.				· · · ·	
		<u> </u>	5				iviate		Dieugeu	a	Δ.			m;	m		
•	Destination of Dredged Material	Mooring Norther Mitigation	Mooring Souther Mitigation	Gifford Street Channel Relocation	Top of Dredge	Federal Channel Dredge	Deep Draft Extension to Nori	Increase Channel Width	ntermediate Dredge	Bottom of Dredg	Lower Harbor CA Cell Phase II	Top of CAD #3	Top of CAD #3 Expansion	3ottom of CAD #3	3ottom of CAD #: Expansion	Totals	
					•												
	OU-3 Hot-Spot Capping Mitigation Area:	-	· _	-	-	-		-	-	_	92 500	_	_	_	,	92 500	
	Disposal										52,500						
	Offshore at CCDS/RISDS:	-	-		_		-	15 000	-	92 500	_	_		90,000	122 000	319 500	
	CCD0, 11000.			<u>,</u>				13,000						90,000	122,000		
	Winter Flounder																х
	Mitigation Area:	-		-	-	-	-	60,000	12,000	2,000	- '	-	-	146,500	-	220,500	
	New Bedford Marine Commerce			• • •													
	Terminal:	-	-	-	-	-	8,000	7,000	-	134,000	-	-	-	-		149,000	
	Former Dartmouth Finishing Site:		-	_	_					45 800	_					45 800	
	Capping of CAD			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·						+3,000	· • • • •					43,800	
	Cell #1:	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	27,500	-	-	·-	-	-	-	27,500	
	Disposal at CAD Cell #2:	· _	-			_	•	-	_	•	_	27 000	6 900			33 900	
•	Disposal at CAD			•			· · · ·		·····			27,000	0,500		<u> </u>	55,500	•
	Cell #3:	8,600	10,500	2,000	118,500	89,000	2,500	8,500	-	-		-	-	-	-	239,600	
	Capping of Borrow Pit CAD Cell:	-	-	, -	-	_	-		25.500	-	_	·		-		25 500	
	Totals:	8,600	10,500	2,000	118,500	89,000	10,500	90,500	65,000	274,300	92,500	27,000	6,900	236,500	122,000	1,153,800	

Table 2

Major Federal Substantive Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements (ARARs)

Table 2

Major Federal Substantive Requirements **Table 2 ARARs for EPA's Third Modification to the South Terminal Project**¹

Federal Requirement ²	Status	Synopsis	Action to be Taken
Clean Water Act, Sec. 404 (33	Applicable	Prohibits discharges of dredge	EPA has re-evaluated the impacts of
U.S.C §1344), 40 C.F.R. Part		or fill material into waters of the	additional dredging and blasting
230, Section 404(b)(1)		U.S. except in compliance with	pursuant to the 404(b)(1) guidelines.
Guidelines for Specification of		the requirements of the §	After careful review of the
Disposal Sites for Dredged or		404(b)(1) guidelines.	Commonwealth's submittals and
Fill Material (40 C.F.R. Part			based on the information provided
230, 231 and 33 C.F.R. Parts		· ·	in those submittals, EPA has
.320-323)	•		determined that 404(b)(1) guidelines
			will be met as long as the conditions
			and mitigation measures set out in
			the Final Determination, as
•			modified, and this Third
			Modification are met.
Rivers and Harbors Act of	Applicable	Prohibits the obstruction or	EPA has re-evaluated the Public
1899, (33 U.S.C. §403 et seq.;		alternation of any navigable	Safety requirement of section 10 for
33 C.F.R. Parts 320-323)		water of the U.S. except as	impacts from the additional blasting.
Section 10		authorized after a finding that	After careful review of the
		the activity is not contrary to the	Commonwealth's submittals and
		public interest.	based on the information provided

¹ Only those ARARs modified by this Third Modification are included; all other ARARs identified in ARARs - Table 2 in the Final Determination are still in effect.

² This Table includes all major federal substantive requirements (ARARs/TBCs) related to this Third Modification to the Final Determination. Additional federal requirements have also been identified and are included in the Administrative Record for this Project. State substantive requirements are referenced separately in the Administrative Record and can also be found in Appendix D to the Final Determination. Finally, some federal requirements are implemented by the State. These are referenced in the Administrative Record.

1

Table 2

	Iviajor reuciar	Substantive Requirements	
Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA), 15 U.S.C §2601 <i>et</i> <i>seq.</i> PCB Remediation Waste (40 C.F.R. §761.61(c))	Applicable	This section of TSCA provides risk-based cleanup and disposal options for PCB remediation waste based on the risks posed by the concentrations at which the PCBs are found.	in those submittals, EPA has determined that the Project meets these requirements as long as the conditions and mitigation measures set out in the Final Determination, as modified, and this Third Modification are met. EPA has determined that disposal of the identified additional < 50 ppm PCB-contaminated sediments into CAD cell #3 and onsite disposal of upland soils with PCB concentrations < 50 ppm will not pose an unreasonable risk of injury to health or the environment as long as the conditions in the Second Modified TSCA Determination (Appendix E of the Third Modification) are met.
Navigation and Navigable Waters, 33 USC 408	Applicable	Unlawful for any person to impair the usefulness of any sea wall, bulkhead, jetty, dike, levee, wharf, pier, or other work built by the United States, unless permission is granted based upon a determination that such occupation or use will not be injurious to the public interest.	Additional dredging and blasting will not adversely affect the hurricane barrier as long as the conditions in this Third Modification are met.

Major Federal Substantive Requirements

Table 2

	iviajoi rederal	Substantive Requirements	
Endangered Species Act	Applicable	Species currently listed on the	EPA has re-initiated consultation to
16 U.S.C. 1531 et seq.		Endangered Species list could	evaluate the impacts of additional
		potentially be affected by the	dredging and blasting. EPA has
		Project.	concluded, for the reasons discussed
			in the Third Modification that while
· · ·			the Project, including the additional
	· ·		impacts, may affect the Atlantic
		•	sturgeon, as long as the
			Commonwealth fully implements all
			the conditions set out in the Final
			Determination, as modified, and the
			Third Modification and mitigation
· ·			measures, it is unlikely to adversely
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	affect the species. The National
			Marine Fisheries Service concurred
			with EPA's conclusion and re-
			initiation of consultation was not
			necessary.
Essential Fish Habitat	Applicable	This Act establishes procedures	EPA has re-initiated consultation
Assessment under the		designed to identify, conserve,	with NMFS to evaluate the impacts
Magnuson-Stevens Act, 16		and enhance essential fish	of additional dredging and blasting.
U.S.C. §§ 1851 et seq.	·	habitat for those species	EPA has determined that the
		regulated under a federal	additional impacts would not have a
		fisheries management plan.	significant effect on EFH, provided
		Consultation with National	that the Commonwealth complies
		Marine Fisheries Service must	with the conditions in the Final
		be conducted.	Determination, as modified, and the
			Third Modification and fully
			implements all of the proposed
			minimization and mitigation

Major Federal Substantive Requirements

Table 2

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	iviajor i cuciar	Substantive Requirements	
			measures. NMFS concurred with EPA's conclusions and re-initiation of consultation was not necessary.
Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act, 16 U.S.C. §661-677e	Applicable	The Act requires consultation with the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (FWS) and/or the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS), as appropriate, and the fish and wildlife service of the state to be undertaken for the purpose of preventing loss of and damage to wildlife resources.	EPA re-initiated consultation with NMFS under this Act to evaluate the impacts of additional dredging and blasting on fish and wildlife resources protected by FWCA. EPA concluded the additional impacts would not have a significant adverse effect on the fish and wildlife resources provided that the mitigation measures included in the Final Determination, as modified, and the conditions included in the Third Modification are satisfied. NMFS concurred with EPA's conclusions and re-initiation of consultation was not necessary.
National Historic Preservation Act, 16 U.S.C. §470; 36 CFR Part 800	Applicable	Section 106 of the Act requires that Federal agencies consider, in consultation with other interested parties, the effects of their undertakings on historic properties prior to the undertaking and determine whether the undertaking adversely affects or has the potential to adversely affect	EPA reviewed the Commonwealth's submissions and determined that the undertaking would not alter EPA's determination set forth in Appendix G of the Final Determination that the work described in the Third Modification will not affect historic properties.

Major Federal Substantive Requirements

	Major Federal	Substantive Requirements	
		these properties. The following	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	•	properties were identified: two	
		paleosols, a shipwreck, and the	
		Palmer Island Light Station.	
Executive Order 12898 –	To Be Considered	The Executive Order, among	Certain areas located within or
Federal Actions to Address		other things, requires, to the	along the truck access route (Route
Environmental Justice in		greatest extent practicable, each	18) have been identified as
Minority Populations and Low-		Federal agency to identify and	environmental justice areas. Traffic,
Income Populations, 59 Fed.		address, as appropriate,	noise and air impacts are expected
Reg. 7,629 (Feb. 16, 1994)		disproportionately high and	to be minimal; however, the Project
		adverse human health or	Construction Management Plan
		environmental effects of its	includes measures to minimize
		programs, policies, and	construction-related impacts. A
		activities on minority	1500 foot perimeter around the
		populations and low-income	blasting areas has been delineated.
	· · ·	populations and to ensure such	Vibrations from blasting impacts are
· .		programs, policies and activities	expected to be minimal and
		are conducted in a manner that	adequate public safety measures
		ensures that such programs,	including notice requirements and
· · · · · ·		policies, and activities do not	vibration monitors are contained in
		have the effect of subjecting	the Project Operational Blasting
		persons (including populations)	Plan.
		to discrimination because of	
		their race, color, or national	
· · · · ·		origin.	
		- , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	

5

Appendix A

Cover email to the Commonwealth's September 25, 2014 Submission

Catri, Cindy

From:	Chet Myers <cmyers@apexcos.com></cmyers@apexcos.com>
Sent:	Thursday, September 25, 2014 3:13 PM
To:	Catri, Cindy; Bill White
Cc:	Dierker, Carl; Williams, Ann; Marsh, Michael; Tisa, Kimberly; Lombardo, Ginny; LeClair, Jacqueline; Colarusso, Phil
Subject:	RE: Additional Information Requested - Channel Widening
Attachments:	Hall-MCEC letter for EPA PDF; Attachment O - Areas of Increased Environmental Impact pdf; E-Mail from Ed Leblanc - USCG.pdf; Attachment B - COMMISSIONER D3 LETTER TO EPA - SOUTH CHANNEL.pdf

Hi Cindy,

Sorry. Doing the best we can.

Attached please find the access letter to the Radio Tower property owned by Hall Communications (for 1a).

As you stated, we have submitted information for 1b.

For Item 2: If you reference Attachment O from MassCEC's 7/25/14 initial submission to EPA (attached), then approximately 22,000 cubic yards of material will be dredged from the dark blue and light blue areas and placed into CAD Cell #3. Approximately 2,000 cubic yards of material will be dredged from the northern end of the orange/gold area, and approximately 5,000 cubic yards of material will be dredged from the red area and placed into CAD Cell #3.

For Item 3: The jurisdictional issue appears to be slightly complicated. We present the response from the USCG on the issue (email from Mr. Ed Leblanc, USCG) is attached.

For Item 4: The letter and supporting runs provided by Captain Bushy (attached to MassCEC's September 12, 2014 letter to EPA) support that the vessel can be brought into and exited from the facility safely. Captain Bushy stated that "I can report that, with a high degree of confidence, that an adequate margin of safety exists in the proposed wider channel under the conditions referenced above and thereby recommend regulatory approval and construction of the widened channel to proceed." The supporting documentation shows modeled docking passages within the revised 300 foot wide channel. The runs show a 300 foot wide deep-draft channel dredged to -30 MLLW. The docking is conducted utilizing two tugs on the bow of the boat (the Reliance and the Resolute) and a tug on at the stern of the boat (the Rainbow). There are 8 runs. Each run begins with a sheet the Pilot completed assessing any issues with the run, the printouts are then sequential (backing runs would show the berthing area on the first page and show areas further from the berth on the second page, approaching runs would show the areas further form the berth on the first page and show the berth on the last page, if the run was completed).

Of the runs included with Captain Bushy's letter, five of eight runs were backing runs (backing from the terminal to the Federal Turning Basin) and three of the runs were approaching the berth. The runs were successful if the vessel remained within the 300 foot wide channel. Based on the results of these runs, Captain Bushy has concluded that the methodology for approaching and departing the terminal, based on the 300 foot wide channel contains an adequate margin of safety given certain environmental parameters. Environmental parameters are set for every vessel entering any port, and include: time of day, tide conditions, current conditions, and wind conditions.

Given these restrictions (which are specific to, but nonetheless normal for, any vessel and any port), Captain Bushy believes that the vessel can be brought to and taken from the berth safely. If the vessel could not safely back, a turning basin would be required. This condition was noted in previous letters from the Northeast Pilots Association. Captain Bushy is aware of the statements made by the Pilots in these letters, but has stated that the adjustments made by

1

MassCEC are sufficient. Therefore, Captain Bushy is not recommending a turning basin; nor does MassCEC believe that a turning basin is necessary.

For Item 5: We are still working on the first blasting report. We apologize for its delay, but hope to get a copy of it out to EPA today or tomorrow.

Thanks,



Follow Apex on Σ and Like us on \mathbf{M}

Privacy Notice: This message and any attachment(s) hereto are intended solely for the individual(s) listed in the masthead. This message may contain information that is privileged or otherwise protected from disclosure. Any review, dissemination or use of this message or its contents by persons other than the addressee(s) is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful. If you have received this message in error, please notify the sender by return e-mail and delete the message from your system. Thank you.

From: Catri, Cindy [mailto:Catri.Cynthia@epa.gov]
Sent: Thursday, September 25, 2014 9:37 AM
To: Chet Myers; Bill White
Cc: Dierker, Carl; Williams, Ann; Marsh, Michael; Tisa, Kimberly; Lombardo, Ginny; LeClair, Jacqueline; Colarusso, Phil
Subject: FW: Additional Information Requested - Channel Widening

We need the information below as soon as possible...any idea when you will provide it? (Note we have received the revised workplan for the Radio Tower parcel (1.b. below) and are in the process of reviewing it.)

From: Catri, Cindy

Sent: Wednesday, September 17, 2014 5:06 PM

To: Chet Myers

Cc: Bill White; Dierker, Carl; Marsh, Michael; Tisa, Kimberly; Lombardo, Ginny; Williams, Ann; Colarusso, Phil; LeClair, Jacqueline

Subject: Additional Information Requested - Channel Widening

Hi Chet,

Thanks for taking the time today to discuss MassCEC's September 12, 2014 submission. As a follow-up from that discussion, below is the additional information EPA requested:

- 1. With regard to the Radio Tower parcel:
 - a. EPA is still waiting for some documentation showing site control or a grant of access to MassCEC; and
 - b. A revision of the Radio Tower Remedial Work Plan that includes EPA's most recent comments (provided on 8/28/2014) and new provisions that discuss the changed use of the Radio Tower parcel from an ancillary property to one that will support high loading capacity and the components of the cap that will be placed on that property. Also, please describe how this parcel will be integrated with the main terminal facility. You were also going to check whether or not RCRA hazardous waste was present on the property and if so, how it would be managed.
- 2. Please provide a breakdown in cubic yards of the various source areas of the 30,000 cubic yards of contaminated sediment that will be disposed of in CAD cell 3.

- 3. A clarification of both the Coast Guard and the Northeast Pilot's role in setting conditions for vessel use of the navigational channels.
- 4. A summary of the modelling results including how those results support Captain Bushy's conclusion that a 300 foot wide channel provides an adequate margin of safety, assuming all conditions set by the proper authority (Coast Guard/Pilots?) are met and that support the conclusion that no southern turning basin, although requested by the Pilots, is necessary. Also, please confirm that the model runs included in the September 12, 2014 submission are for a 300 foot wide channel at -30 MLLW.

5. A summary of the results of the most recent blasting event authorized by EPA on August 20, 2014.

Appendix B

EPA's August 20, 2014 Approval with Conditions for Additional Blasting



UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY Region 1 5 Post Office Square, Suite 100 Boston, MA 02109-3912

Via Electronic Mail <u>bwhite@MassCEC.com</u> and First-Class Mail

August 20, 2014

Bill White, Director Offshore Wind Sector Development Massachusetts Clean Energy Center 53 Franklin Street Boston, MA 02110

RE: Request for Channel Widening and Additional Blasting New Bedford Harbor Superfund Site State Enhanced Remedy – South Terminal Project

Dear Mr. White:

EPA has reviewed MassCEC's request dated July 25, 2014 for additional dredging and blasting activities to widen the currently authorized 225 foot wide channel to 300 feet with a uniform depth of – 30 MLLW and to eliminate the currently authorized 100 foot wide tug channel.¹ MassCEC has also requested that the blasting associated with the expanded channel work be conducted prior to September 1, 2014 for several reasons including the continued presence of blasting equipment in the area, the fact that clean overburden material has not yet been dredged within the proposed blasting areas, and the project construction schedule.

Given the compressed time period, EPA agreed to review the requested modification in two phases with a review of blasting first, provided that MassCEC submitted sufficient information for EPA to determine that, without further dredging, the requested blasting activities associated with the expanded channel will not result in greater depth or width in the channel beyond that which is already authorized by EPA in its Second Modification. On August 14, 2014, MassCEC provided further information and, based on that information and as explained below, EPA has determined that the requested blasting will not alter the currently authorized channel configuration. This letter represents EPA's determination only as to the blasting portion of the request; EPA is reserving its determination as to the additional dredging portion

¹ The 225 foot wide channel and 100 foot wide tug channel were authorized in EPA's Second Modification of the South Terminal Project issued on September 30, 2012.

Request for Channel Widening and Additional Blasting August 20, 2014

of MassCEC's request. A subsequent determination as to the expanded dredging request will be issued at a later date.

Because the requested blasting will occur during certain time periods of restricted in-water work established to protect various aquatic resources, EPA has also coordinated with the National Marine Fisheries Services (NMFS) concerning this request.

In its submissions, MassCEC describes the additional blasting to be conducted in areas located completely within the authorized navigational channel, the tug channel and associated side slopes of those channels. Blasting is proposed in two areas along the western side of the navigational channel and in one larger area in the tug channel with several smaller areas located in the southeast corner of the tug channel. A map of the blasting areas is attached as Attachment 1. The average thickness of the rock is approximately three feet with approximately eight feet at its thickest point. It is currently estimated that the total volume of the rock to be removed is approximately 3,000 cubic yards over an area of approximately 27,000 square feet. It is anticipated that the blasting will require approximately 60 to 80 holes, and that each hole will be loaded within a range, depending on the actual depth of rock, from approximately 68 to 82 pounds, with a maximum charge weight per delay limited to 136 pounds. The entire blasting event is estimated to be completed in three to five days but could take up to one week. The request goes on to state that this blasting is necessary to enable the widening and deepening of the approach channel through future dredging, if authorized.

To accommodate MassCEC's schedule, EPA expedited its review of the blasting request and coordination with NMFS. EPA forwarded MassCEC's July 25, 2014 submission to NMFS while EPA conducted its own review of the July 25 and August 14, 2014 submissions which included weekly blasting reports and monitoring results from blasting events in 2013 and 2014.

After conducting its review and coordination with NMFS, EPA has determined that the proposed blasting, although larger than the single event that occurred in March 2014, is smaller than the series of blasts that MassCEC conducted in the winter of 2013. In addition, the proposed blasting will occur in the same general area as the 2013 blasting although one of the proposed areas within the tug channel is approximately 66 feet closer to Palmer Island Light Station and another within the tug channel is approximately 56 feet closer to the monitoring station on Palmer's Island (both are within a 1300 foot radius of the proposed blasting event).

The Commonwealth has proposed that blasting occur prior to September 1; EPA has determined that blasting during this period and into the early part of September has the potential to impact the outward migration of anadromous fish and the endangered Atlantic sturgeon which may be foraging in the area. Both the 2013 and 2014 blasting events, which also had potential impacts to aquatic life², were conducted in accordance with requirements for

2

² The 2013 blasting event occurred from October 2013 through January 2014, also a time period during which outward migrating anadromous fish may be present in the Acushnet River and the Atlantic sturgeon may be

Request for Channel Widening and Additional Blasting August 20, 2014

a fish deterrent system, a fisheries observer on site, and monitoring for fish pre- and postblasting. In addition, all contaminated sediment was removed prior to blasting but clean overburden material remained in place during blasting. No significant amount of fish mortality was observed as a result of those blasts. To ensure compliance with Essential Fish Habitat (EFH) under Magnuson-Stevens and the Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act (FWCA), the fish deterrent system (including silt and bubble curtains), fisheries observer and monitoring plan must be in place, and the clean overburden must remain in place during blasting. EPA believes that additional controls are not warranted and that we have fulfilled our obligation to minimize impacts to EFH. By email dated August 18, 2014, NMFS agrees that no additional consultation on EFH is necessary (Attachment 2). Though Atlantic sturgeon could be present in the Acushnet River, EPA believes a re-initiation of the Endangered Species Consultation is not warranted, as this activity would not pose any risk above and beyond what had been considered in the prior consultations with NMFS. We base this conclusion on the acoustic modeling results, including the Commonwealth's confirmation of the acoustic modeling results as It applies to its current request for blasting,³ the prior successful (no significant fish mortality) blasting events, the continued presence of clean overburden, and the continued use of a fish deterrent system (including silt and bubble curtains), fishery observers and the monitoring for the presence of fish pre- and post- blasting. By email dated August 15, 2014, NMFS has concurred with EPA's conclusions and concluded that no further consultation or coordination is necessary. See Attachment 3.

EPA also reviewed the vibrations recorded in the blasting reports taken pursuant to the Vibration Monitoring Program during the 2013 and 2014 blasting events. All readings from both events were below the allowable limits for historic, residential and other structures (including Palmer Island Light Station and the hurricane barrier) that were identified in EPA's Second Modification document.

Because of the shift in two proposed blasting locations closer to the Light Station and the vibration monitor, and because the 1500' blasting radius has now moved 200 feet further north,⁴ inclusive of Palmer's Island, EPA requested MassCEC to either update or confirm the information and conclusions reached by GZA, its contractor, in its September 11, 2013, memo concerning the anticipated impact of the additional proposed blasting on the Palmer Island Light Station.⁵ Using adjusted factors based on the actual monitoring data, GZA calculated the anticipated vibration levels at the Light Station for the proposed blasting to range from 0.09

foraging in the area. The 2014 blasting event occurred on March 24, 2014, during the spawning season of winter flounder.

³ See response to EPA question No. 6 in letter dated August 14, 2014 from Bill White, MassCEC, to Elaine Stanley, EPA.

⁴ See Attachment F of letter dated August 14, 2014 from Bill White, MassCEC to Elaine Stanley, EPA.

⁵ GZA, in its September 11, 2013 memorandum (AR #549037) estimated the maximum estimated vibration, or peak particle velocity (PPV) was 0.034 inches per second (in/sec) for the 2013blasting or 15 times lower than the <0.5 in/sec allowable maximum vibration for the protection of plaster structures. (See Massachusetts Building Code (Explosive Regulations) at 527 CMR 13.09.)

Request for Channel Widening and Additional Blasting August 20, 2014

in/sec for an 82 pound charge per delay to 0.12 in/sec for the maximum 136 pound per charge delay, which is significantly below the limiting vibration level of <0.5 in/sec. See GZA memorandum dated August 13, 2014 attached as Attachment 4.

Finally, because the Light Station is owned and maintained by the City of New Bedford, MassCEC also provided a letter from the New Bedford Harbor Development Commission dated August 11, 2014⁶ which states "The HDC is satisfied with the precautions instituted to protect adjacent structures, including...the recently renovated Palmer's Island Light Station, instituted by MassCEC to date...and is not opposed to the additional blasting."

EPA has considered the calculations performed by the Commonwealth's consultant and the July 25 and August 14, 2014 submissions from MassCEC. In light of this information and the actions that have been taken and will continue to be taken in accordance with the conditions set out in EPA's September 16, 2013 letter to Brona Simon, State Historic Preservation Officer, and below in this letter to avoid effects to historic properties, EPA has determined that approval of this proposed blasting request will not change its conclusion set out in EPA's Second Modification for the South Terminal Project that this Project will not affect the Palmer Island Light Station. See Attachment 5.

In addition, with regard to potential impacts to the New Bedford/Fairhaven Hurricane Barrier, MassCEC provided two emails from Michael Banchard, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE's) that reflect that USACE "has no objections to the additional blasting work provided the work is done following the same protocols established in our previous 33 USC 408 approval letter."⁷ See Attachment 6

As a result of its review and after coordinating with NMFS, EPA determines that the requested additional blasting continues to meet the substantive requirements of all identified federal ARARs in EPA's Second Modification of the South Terminal Project and accepts the State's determination that the additional blasting continues to meet the substantive requirements of all identified state ARARs,⁸ as long as the following conditions are met:

 The additional blasting event remains as described in MassCEC's July 25 and August 14, 2014 submissions (with approximately 60 – 80 boreholes with delays, with a maximum total explosive charge of 136 lb. per borehole) and includes a minimum 25 millisecond delay between charge detonations;

⁸ See Attachment I of letter dated August 14, 2014 from Bill White, MassCEC, to Elaine Stanley, EPA.

 ⁶ See Attachment H to letter dated August 14, 2014 from Bill White, MassCEC to Elaine Stanley, EPA.
 ⁷ See Attachment E to letter dated August 14, 2014 from Bill White, MassCEC to Elaine Stanley, EPA. USACE's 33
 USC 408 approval letter and subsequent clarifications may be found in the administrative record for the Second Modification for the South Terminal Project at AR #540345, AR #547288 and AR #547269.

Request for Channel Widening and Additional Blasting August 20, 2014

- 2. For compliance with TSCA, all contaminated material is removed and properly disposed in accordance with EPA's prior determinations for South Terminal;
- 3. Implement all mitigation and monitoring measures required for prior blasting events as described in EPA's Second Modification to protect aquatic resources, including water quality monitoring, the fish deterrent system (including silt and bubble curtains), a fisheries observer on site, and monitoring for fish pre- and post-blasting except as modified below:
 - a. Condition No. 1: A final blasting plan must be submitted to and approved by EPA before blasting commences;
 - b. Condition No. 2: Blasting shall only be conducted in the locations depicted on Attachment B of the Commonwealth's August 14, 2014 letter to EPA (See Attachment 1 of this document); the remainder of this condition is not applicable to the current blasting request;
 - c. Condition No. 7: The second paragraph of this condition is not applicable to the current blasting request;
 - d. Condition No. 8: No more than 136 pounds of explosive per delayed charge, with a minimum time delay of 25 milliseconds between charges shall be used; and
 - e. Condition No. 13: To protect the Hurricane Barrier, blasting must also be conducted consistent with the email dated August 15, 2014 from Michael Bachand, USACE to Chet Myers (see Attachment 5);
- 4. Implement all impact parameter and monitoring measures required for prior blasting events as described in EPA's Second Modification for impact on land structures and in water structures, including the historic Palmer Light Station and the hurricane barrier;
- 5. Implement all measures for public notice to landowners and mariners required for prior blasting events in accordance with EPA's Second Modification; and
- 6. MassCEC provides EPA with a post-blasting report similar to the weekly blasting reports provided from prior blasting events.

This requested blasting work represents only a portion of the Commonwealth's requested modification to EPA's Second Modification for the South Terminal Project. EPA will review the Commonwealth's request for additional dredging to widen and deepen the navigational channel and eliminate the tug channel in a separate document that will incorporate this determination concerning blasting. EPA's Second Modification for the South Terminal Project can be found on New Bedford Harbor Superfund Site web page <u>http://www..epa.gov/nbh</u>.

5

Bill White, MassCEC Request for Channel Widening and Additional Blasting. August 20, 2014

If you have any questions, please contact Ginny Lombardo at (617) 918-1754 or Cynthia Catri at (617)-918-1888.

Very truly yours,

FOR JTO

James T. Owens III Director, Office of Site Remediation and Restoration

cc: via electronic mail Brona Simon mhc@sec.state.ma.us cmvers@apexcos.com iborkland@apexcos.com ehines@lemessurier.com cmorris@MassCEC.com dierker.carl@epa.gov tisa.kimberly@epa.gov williams.ann@epa.gov marsh.mike@epa.gov colarusso.phil@epa.gov colarusso.phil@epa.gov lombardo.ginny@epa.gov

Attachment 1

٠.



· · · · · ·

Attachments 2 and 3

ients 2 and 3

۰.

ł

Gardner, Ann

From:	Catri, Cindy
Sent:	Wednesday, August 20, 2014 2:14 PM
To:	Gardner, Ann
Subject:	FW: FW: Response to Questions - 8-14-14 - MassCEC Request for Middle Channel
A	Modification to Final Determination for the South Terminal Project
Attachments:	removed.txt

From: Colarusso, Phil Sent: Monday, August 18, 2014 2:39 PM To: Catri, Cindy; Williams, Ann; Dierker, Carl Subject: FW: FW: Response to Questions - 8-14-14 - MassCEC Request for Wider Channel - Modification to Final Determination for the South Terminal Project

On EFH consultation from NMFS

From: Christopher Boelke - NOAA Federal [mailto:christopher.boelke@noaa.gov]

Sent: Monday, August 18, 2014 2:24 PM

To: Colarusso, Phil

Subject: Re: FW: Response to Questions - 8-14-14 - MassCEC Request for Wider Channel - Modification to Final Determination for the South Terminal Project

Phil - Per our discussion, we do not believe that this additional work requires a re-initiation of the EFH consultation. We believe that the request for deepening of the proposed channel from -14 to -30 will result in a permanent loss of additional winter flounder habitat and will require additional compensatory mitigation. Please let me know if you would like to discuss further.

1

Chris

On Mon, Aug 18, 2014 at 10:08 AM, Colarusso, Phil < colarusso.phil@epa.gov> wrote:

Chris,

I'll be around this afternoon and we can discuss.

Phil

From: Christopher Boelke - NOAA Federal [mailto:<u>christopher.boelke@noaa.gov]</u> Sent: Monday, August 18, 2014 9:54 AM To: Colarusso, Phil Subject: Re: FW: Response to Questions - 8-14-14 - MassCEC Request for Wider Channel - Modification to Final Determination for the South Terminal Project

Hi Phil - got your message about New Bedford. Have meetings until noon, but can I call around 1? Seems like the responses are focused around blasting. is there any other information about the expansion of the channel from -14 to -30, or do you consider that already to have been addressed in the earlier EFH assessment?

On Fri, Aug 15, 2014 at 11:56 AM, Christine Vaccaro - NOAA Federal < christine.vaccaro@noaa.gov> wrote: .

Hi Phil,

Sorry I missed your call yesterday. I looked over the information you sent, and I have to agree that I don't think this modification will create any new effects for ESA-listed species that have not previously been considered. So yes, your determination that no re-initiation is necessary is on target.

Let me know if you need more than email verification of this, and we can see about issuing another letter. We may need you to send something just re-iterating your determination. Should be a quick turnaround.

Cheers,

Chris

Chris Vaccaro Fisheries Biologist Protected Resources Division NOAA Fisheries

Gloucester, MA Phone: <u>978-281-9167</u> Email: christine.vaccaro@noaa.gov

On Thu, Aug 14, 2014 at 4:29 PM, Colarusso, Phil < colarusso.phil@epa.gov> wrote:

Chris, Chris,

Per my voicemail. Here is some of the supporting information for the state's request for their latest modification. The request to do the blasting is the most time sensitive part of the modification. Based on their use of the fish deterrent system, smaller charges, limited area needed for blasting and recent blasting success (no fish kills), we feel that allowing them to blast between now and September 1, represents a minimal risk to ESA. EFH and species covered under Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act, thus reinitiation of consultation is not warranted. Please let me know if you need any additional information and if you concur with our determination.

Phil

From: Chet Myers [mailto: cmyers@apexcos.com]

Sent: Thursday, August 14, 2014 2:49 PM

To: Dierker, Carl; Lederer, Dave; Lombardo, Ginny; Stanley, Elaine; Williams, Ann; Colarusso, Phil; Tisa, Kimberly; Catri, Cindy; Marsh, Michael

Cc: Alicia Barton; Jay Borkland; Eric Hines (ehines@lemessurier.com); Christopher Morris; Christen Anton; paul.craffey@state.ma.us; Bill White

Subject: Response to Questions - 8-14-14 - MassCEC Request for Wider Channel - Modification to Final Determination for the South Terminal Project

Hi Carl,

On behalf of Bill White from MassCEC, attached please find MassCEC's response to EPA questions issued within an e-mail dated July 31, 2014. EPA's questions were associated with a formal request to EPA for a modification to the Final Determination for the New Bedford Marine Commerce Terminal Project for widening the channel to allow safe access to the Terminal.

This submission is a follow-up to our meeting on Monday, July 14th at EPA Region 1, our phone conversation on July 16th, and our initial formal submittal to EPA on July 25, 2014.

The full version (with attachments) is called "Response to EPA Questions 8-14-14 w-Attachments.pdf" and has been uploaded to Apex's Document Management System (due to size restrictions).

3

Apex's Document Management System can be accessed through the following:

Address:



If you have any issues accessing the document, please feel free to contact me.

Thanks so much for your help!

Apex Companies, LLC 125 Broad Street, 5th Floor Boston, MA 02110 O) <u>617-728-0070 x113</u> M) <u>617-908-577</u>

Building Safety Together

Follow Apex on and Like us on

Privacy Notice: This message and any attachment(e) hereto are intended solely for the individual(s) listed in the masthead. This message may contain information that is privileged or otherwise protected from disclosure. Any review, dissemination or use of this message or its contents by persons other than the addressee(s) is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful. If you have received his message in error, please notify the sender by return e-mail and delete the message from your system. Thank you.

Christopher Boelke

Field Offices Supervisor

Habitat Conservation Division

۰.

::

Greater Atlantic Region

NOAA, National Marine Fisheries Service

<u>978-281-9131</u>

http://www.nmfs.noaa.gov/

Christopher Boelke Field Offices Supervisor Habitat Conservation Division Greater Atlantic Region NOAA, National Marine Fisheries Service

5

978-281-9131

http://www.nmfs.noaa.gov/
Attachment 4

C57

M	en	กอ
	Toe	

From

Chet Meyers, John McAllister, Greg Dolan (Apex Companies, LLC)

Alexander Haag, David Carchedi, (GZA GeoEnvironmental, Inc.)

File:	33734.07 Mem-01	
Date:	August 13, 2014	
Ros	Analysis of Blast Monitoring Data at Palmer Island – Anticipate Blasting at Palmer Island Lighthouse New Bedford Marine Commerce Terminal New Bedford Massachureatte	d Impact of Additional Proposed

Attachments: FIG-1, Palmer Island Vibration Data Analysis

GZA GeoEnvironmental, Inc. (GZA) prepared this memorandum in accordance with your request to evaluate and analyze vibration monitoring data collected during the blasting conducted for the New Bedford Marine Commerce Terminal between October 24, 2013 and January 11, 2014, and on March 24, 2014. GZA has summarized and tabulated vibration monitoring data collected on Palmer Island. The data includes:

Vibration Data:

- Distance of the Blast Area to the Vibration Monitor
- (see vibration monitor location MP-1 on attached figure); 0
- Peak Vector Sum (PVS) recorded by the vibration monitoring equipment (Seismograph MP-1)
- Time of Seismograph Measurement
- Contractor's Predicted Vibration Level
 - (PVS as reported in the daily blast report).

GZA's Calculated Vibration Level based on Distance and Charge Weight

o (PVS - based on conservative calibration of the propagation model to the collected blast data) **Blasting Data:**

Blast Number, Approximate Blast Time, Maximum Charge Weight per Delay (Ib/delay), Total Holes Blasted, Total Charge Weight

Based on the evaluation of the recorded data, and conservative calibration of the propagation model, GZA estimated the anticipated vibration level at the Palmer Island Lighthouse, based on:

- the closest distance of new proposed blasting to the lighthouse (1300 ft minimum distance)
- the overall and local maximum proposed charge weights to be used for additional blasting required for the channel widening (136 lb per delay and 82 lb per delay, respectively)

As a result of the analysis, the anticipated vibration levels at the Palmer Island Lighthouse (0.09 to 0.12 in/sec) are significantly below the limiting vibration level for historic structures (0.5in/sec).

We trust that this memo addresses the current needs of your project. Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact Alexander Haag or David Carchedi at 401-421-4140.

JAGeol33734.07.dyblCorrespondencelMemosl33734.07 Mem-01.docx

O Page 1



	1		VIBRA	TION N	IONITOR	ING DAT	A SUMM	ARY	1993	(RIPINSON)
1	BLAST		Pal	Vibration Data Palmer's Island MP-1			Blast Data			
Date NUMBER	CWNB Predicted PVS	GZA Calculated PVS	Peak Vecto Sum (ips)	r Time	Distance Blast Area to Monitor	Approximate Blast Time	Maximum Ibs./delay	Total Holes Loaded	Total Pounds Loaded	
10/24/201	3 TB-001 3 NB-002	0.083	0.071	0.057	15:58:50	1318	16:00	62	1	the state of the
10/30/201	NB-002	0.050	0.054	0.056	14:37:06	1333	14:35	42	4	188
10/31/2013	8 . NB-004	0.058	0.054	0.045	14:12:33	1342	14:11	42	1 . 7	294
11/1/2013	NB-005	0.100	0.055	0.038	12:00:22	1351	9:58	42	22	024
11/4/2013	NB-006	0.056	0.053	0.056	11:30:15	1367	11:30	84	31	1584
11/5/2013	NB-007	0.055	0.052	0.043	15:51:55	1362	15:50	42	16	672
11/6/2013	NB-008	0.049	0.050	0.036	14:36:03	1377	9:47	42	23	966
11/6/2013	NB-009	0.049	0.050	0.04	14:36:27	1410	9:00	42	24	1008
11/7/2013	NB-010	0.048	0.050	0.034	9:35:00	1407	14:35	42	5	210
11/7/2013	NB-011	0.048	0.049	0.034	15:59:05	1427	9:35	42	36	1092
11/8/2013	NB-012	0.090	0.089	0.038	15:03:09	1417	16:00	42	12	344
11/9/2013	N8-013	0.049	0.050	0.038	13:14:03	1417	15:00	102	44	2128
11/12/2013	NB-014	0.048	0.049	0.029	14:07:05	1440	13:14	42	38	1436
11/13/2013	NB-015	0.073	0.074	0.035	14:37:07	1459	14:07	42	27	1014
11/15/2013	.NB-016	0.063	0.084	0.043	10:27:02	1484	10.25	82	42	1724
11/16/2013	NB-017	0.070	0.071	0.062	13:09:21	1511	13.10	102	38	2118
11/10/2013	NB-018	0.089	0.090	0.057	13:07:05	1537	13.05	82	50	2559
11/10/2013	NB-019	0.068	0.069	0.032	15:52:40	1545	15.50	1//	63	4884
11/20/2013	NB-020	0.075	0.076	0.06	9:27:09	1438	9:25	82	31	1701
11/21/2013	NB-021	0.049	0.050	0.045	14:24:02	1415	14:23	42	37	1794
11/22/2013	NR-022	0.064	0.066	0.05	14:58:00	1396	14:56	67	33	1246
11/23/2013	NB-024	0.071	0.072	0.046	11:31:00	1502	11:30	82	33	1366
11/26/2013	N8-025	0.072	0.073	0.04	9:33:09	1474	9:30	82	42	3100
11/27/2013	NB-026	0.075	0.074	0.037	9:01:09	1471	9:00	82	75	2045
11/29/2013	NB-027	0.059	0.067	0.074	8:39:06	1374	8:38	62	43	3970
11/30/2013	NB-028	0.052	0.061	0.037	10:44:47	1483	10:44	62	19	919
12/2/2013	N8-029	0.096	0.007	0.037	13:02:07	1431	13:02	62	35	1570
12/3/2013	NB-030	0.070	0.095	0.030	15:43:04	1570	15:43	142	28	2535
12/4/2013	NB-031	0.064	0.086	0.038	9:01:04	1595	9:00	142	33	3347
12/5/2013	N8-032	0.058	0.078	0.032	9:41:01	1591	9:40	122	55	4209
12/6/2013	NB-033	0.059	0.080	0.032	0:42:04	1566	11:40	102	65	4148
12/7/2013	NB-034	. 0.061	0.082	0.04	10-51-02	1536	9:40	102	54	3187
12/9/2013	N8-035	0.070	0.094	0.029	13:45:57	1510	10:51	102	56	4233
12/10/2013	NB-036	0.048	0.064	0.026	9:01:00	1465	13:46	122	42	2944
12/11/2013	NB-037	0.055	0.074	0.023	10:25:46	1464	9:00	82	30	1720
12/12/2013	NB-038	0.047	0.063	0.034	10:10:58	1654	10-10	82	59	2818
12/13/2013	NB-039	0.040	0.053	0.05	9:05:57	1360	9-05	82	-39	2258
12/14/2013	NB-040	0.040	0.053	0.05	9:05:57	1351	15:41	42	- 33	1386
12/14/2013	NR-041	0.042	0.057	0.051	9:00:58	1289	9:00	42	13	526
12/16/2013	NB-042	0.040	0.054	0.036	9:00:58	1337	12:50	42	2	192
12/17/2013	NR-044	0.046	0.063	0.019	9:01:28	1444	9:00	62	14	04
12/18/2013	NB-045	0.040	0.062	.0.053	15:30:55	1193	15:31	42	35	1410
12/19/2013	NB-046	0.040	0.053	0.032	9:21:24	1353	9:21	42	33	1326
12/20/2013	NB-047	0.051	0.051	0.026	10:51:09	1399	10:51	42	35	1450
12/21/2013	NB-048	0.040	0.005	0.027	11:08:57	1346	11:08	62	55	2250
12/23/2013	NB-049	0.041	0.056	0.044	13:37:56	1320	13:37	42	55	2230
12/24/2013	NB-050	0.043	0.058	0.032	13:01:53	1298	13:00	42	30	1240
12/27/2013	NB-051	0.077	0.097	0.038	7:51:15	1268	7:51	42	.9	298
12/28/2013	NB-052	0.065	0.076	0.057	10:09:58	1233	10:09	82	-65	3530
12/30/2013	NB-053	0.075	0.090	0.057	14-10-59	1244	9:01	62	60	2560
2/30/2013	NB-054	0.082	0.099	0.058	14-19-59	1259	9:18	82	31	1582
2/31/2013	NB-055	0.084	0.101	0.09	9-38-56	11/3	14:19	82	17	754
2/31/2013	NB-056	0.091	0.110	0.073	9-38-56	1076	9:38	82	57	3054
1/2/2014	NB-057	0.092	0.112	0.108	9:00:41	1054	14:09	82	10	480
1/3/2014	NB-058	0.062	0.072	0.037	14:51:01	1207	9:00	82	34	1828
1/4/2014	NB-059	0.082	0.098	0.062	14:13:02	1175	14:50	62	63	2526
1/6/2014	NB-060	0.086	0.104	0.079	11:35:59	1127	11:35	82	42	2204
1/7/2014	NB-061	0.052	0.073	0.081	11:41:54	1288	11:00	82	46	2392

New Bedford Marine Commerce Terminal, New Bedford Massachusets GZA Job# 33734.07

1 **

New Bedford Marine Commerce Terminal, New Bedford Massachusets GZA Job# 33734.07

				Vibration Dat	2 million	and Drill	- OOTVIIVIA		A Carlot and	
	100	da reidi :	Palmer's Island MP-1				Blast Data			
Date	BLAST	CWNB Predicted PVS	GZA Calculated PVS	Peak Vector Sum (ips)	Time	Distance Blast Area to Monitor	Approximate Blast Time	Maximum Ibs./delay	Total Holes Loaded	Total Pour Loaded
1/7/2014	NB-062	0.052	0.060	0.038	11:41:54	1233	15:48	47	4	149
1/8/2014	NB-063	0.064	0.075	0.122	10:32:49	1261	10:32	62	40 -	1860
1/8/2014	NB-064	0.055	0.064	0.074	10:32:49	1177	15:58	42	9	318
1/9/2014	NB-065	0.068	0.080	0.075	16:44:38	1196	12:08	62	33	1346
1/9/2014	NB-066	0.073	0.087	0.082	16:44:38	1126	16:44	62	12	504
1/10/2014	NB-067	0.043	0.049	0.032	9:00:56	1606	9:00	52	24	838
1/10/2014	NB-068	0.040	0.042	0.023	9:00:56	1609	14:40	42	20	670
1/11/2014	NB-069	0.040	0.041	0.019	16:41:55	1644	9:00	42	15	400
3/24/2014	NB-070	0.040	0.038	0.018	9:59:26	1583	9:58	34	16	464
100	110	tak	Cer	10. 11. 14	13 1 38	CONFERENCE PER	PARTY INTER	State of States	All and a second of	C. Landson .
		CWNB Pred	dict. Vs. Actual	128%	at torn	alaks 1 18	24 (C. 1997)	They are		1. A. M. M.
		CWN	IB Correllation	51%	ALC: UNK			and the second	errie 1	12.2
		12 19	H:	55		1451				1-14TA
	1.4	· · · · · · ·	B	-1.3	1942 T-38	LADY IN SH	44 (J. 1998)	and the second	and a second	and the second
	0	GZA Pred	dict. Vs. Actual	145%	and the state				1	
		GZ	A Correllation	53%	Les Da		W		Table B	A STATE OF A STATE
	une outeoor		and the second	In shared	april 14	1244 11 49			11 Acres 1	And the second
UME MAXIN	UM CHARGE	WEIGHT PER	DELAY AT CLO	SEST DISTANCI	E - PREDICT VI	IBRATIONS AT P	ALMER LIGHTHOU	JSE		CENTRAL CO
Distance	Weight	100	Predicted PVS	10 - 11 - 18 M	102	Percent of MA	Building Code Va	lue (0.5 in/sec)	1	Cave Carrie
1300	136	L casi	0.120	14 (j. 8)	BAL ST	24%		and the second	-HED-EL	CONTRACTOR OF CONTRACTOR
1006	4	120	111111		244	SPERT I I	and the second	and a second		
AL MAXIMU	M CHARGE W	VEIGHT PER DI	ELAY AT CLOSE	ST DISTANCE -	PREDICT VIBI	RATIONS AT PAL	MER LIGHTHOUS	E D PART	-dlash -	COLUMN A
Distance	Weight	11 28.8	Predicted PVS	11 11		Percent of MA	Building Code Va	lue (0.5 in/sec)	1 credula	
1300	82	La Lan	0.086	10 11 F	R14	17%		and the second	Contractor of the second	
				that the second	104	Values 12 and	A CONTRACTOR	CONTRACTOR DATA	. House a	
Competence of the					Star of the star	MARRIES IN AN	ARA ENTERIE	Sector States	1 0 10 10 I	1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.
7.85			M	opsurad	ve Dradi	ctod Vibr	tions	and the second	a distant i	
Mar				casureu	vs. Ficul	cteu vibia	nions	1	1 marsh	Contraction of
are li	100.00	194	P	almer Isl	and: H=	55, beta =	-1.3	ala i anti	in the second second	
1.64										and a start
1700	por al an	13	10	the state of the	192	dir har 1	and the second second	and a second	and an and he	and and
riffe .	11		- DA		BALL 1	Com To day of		Contract of the second s	A DESCRIPTION OF	
10	1. 18		· · ·			All all and a second se				
1600						at a galanting and		Measured Vib	rations,vs. Distance	
2000	·			1000	0. II	at the second	en Sta	Measured Vib	rations,vs. Distance	
- NOT	1			1	al is	ulian in ulian in		Measured Vib Calculated Vib	orations vs. Distance	e
and a	11	1. 11 1. 11 1.	1		हों है। होयां पर दही के पर	in Calendaria Mariana Mariana Mariana		Measured Vib Calculated Vib	rations.vs. Distance orations vs. Distance	e
1500	11 10 10		: *.		al la pul la cal la			Measured Vib Calculated Vib MAXIMUM As	orations.vs. Distance orations vs. Distance NTICIPATED PVS at	e PIL
1500			; *.	•••				Measured Vib Calculated Vib MAXIMUM As (136 lb/delay)	vations.vs. Distance prations vs. Distance NTICIPATED PVS at	e PIL
1500				•		and and a second		Measured Vib Celculated Vib MAXIMUM At (136 lb/delay) MAXIMUM At	vations.vs. Distance prations vs. Distance NTICIPATED PVS at NTICIPATED PVS at	e PIL PIL
1500 4 1500 1500								Measured Vib Celculated Vib MAXIMUM At (136 lb/delay) MAXIMUM At (S2lb/delay)	rations.vs. Distance prations vs. Distance NTICIPATED PVS at NTICIPATED PVS at	e PIL PIL
1500 41 uj teija 1400 19						U - Stra Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange Strange St		Measured Vib Celculated Vib MAXIMUM At (136 lb/delay) MAXIMUM At (S2lb/delay)	vrations.vs. Distance prations vs. Distance NTICIPATED PVS at NTICIPATED PVS at	e PIL PIL
1500 42 uj 1400 1500 20				1	0 3 204 3 Cold 3			Measured Vib Celculated Vib MAXIMUM At (336 lb/delay) MAXIMUM At (S2lb/delay)	vations.vs. Distance prations vs. Distance NTICIPATED PVS at NTICIPATED PVS at	e PIL PIL
1500 42 14 1400 1400 1300					00 1 1 201 0 101 0 101 0 100 0 1			Measured Vib Celculated Vib MAXIMUM At (136 lb/delay) MAXIMUM At (S2lb/delay)	vations.vs. Distance prations vs. Distance NTICIPATED PVS at NTICIPATED PVS at	e PIL PIL
1500 42 1400 1400 1300 1300				V				Measured Vib Celculated Vib MAXIMUM A1 (136 lb/delay) MAXIMUM A1 (S2lb/delay)	vations.vs. Distance prations vs. Distance VTICIPATED PVS at VTICIPATED PVS at	e PIL PIL
1500 44 1400 1300 1300					10 1 201 1 10 1 10 1 10 1 10 1 10 1 10 1 10 1 11 1 12 1 13 1 14 1 15 1 16 1 17 1 18 1 19 1 10 1 11 1 12 1 13 1 14 1 15 1 16 1 17 1 18 1 19 1 10 1 11 1 12 1 13 1 14 1 15 1 16 1			Measured Vib Galculated Vib MAXIMUM AI (136 lb/delay) MAXIMUM AI (S2lb/delay)	vations.vs. Distance scations vs. Distance NTICIPATED PVS at NTICIPATED PVS at	e PIL PIL
1500 42 1400 83 1300 1200					data 3 2021 1 100 1 100 1 100 1 100 1 100 1 100 1 100 1 100 1 100 1 100 1 100 1 100 1 100 1 100 1 100 1 100 1 100 1 100 1 100 1 100 1 100 1 100 1 100 1 100 1 100 1 100 1 100 1			Measured Vib Colculated Vib MAXIMUM At (136 lb/delay) MAXIMUM At (S2lb/delay)	vrations.vs. Distance prations vs. Distance NTICIPATED PVS at NTICIPATED PVS at	e PIL PIL
1500 40 1500 40 1400 1300 1200					000 1 2011 1 010 1 010 1 010 1 010 1 010 1 010 1 010 1 010 1 010 1 010 1 010 1 010 1 010 1 010 1 010 1 010 1 010 1 010 1 010 1 010 1 010 1 010 1			Measured Vib Celculated Vib MAXIMUM At (3.36 lb/delay) MAXIMUM At (S2lb/delay)	vrations.vs. Distance prations vs. Distance NTICIPATED PVS at NTICIPATED PVS at	e PIL PIL
1500 45 1400 1300 1300 1200					600 8 8 201 9 100 9 1000 9 10000000000		901 1951 1977 1977 1977 1977 1977 1977 197	Measured Vib Gelculated Vib MAXIMUM At (136 lb/delay) MAXOMUM At (S2lb/delay)	vrations.vs. Distance prations vs. Distance NTICIPATED PVS at NTICIPATED PVS at	e PIL PIL
1500 4 1500 4 1300 1300 1200 1100					BA B PUL T Cold T BA T			Measured Vib Celculated Vib MAXIMUM At (336 lb/delay) MAXOMUM At (\$21b/delay)	VTICIPATED PVS at	e PIL PIL
1500 4 5 1400 9 9 1400 9 1300 1200 1100					diff 1 Pull 1 diff 2			Measured Vib Celculated Vib MAXIMUM At (336 lb/delay) MAXMUM At (521b/delay)	VTICIPATED PVS at	e PIL PIL
1500 4 5 1400 9 3					dir 1 PUL 1 CLG 1 RE 1			Measured Vib Galculated Vib MAXIMUM At (136 lb/delay) MAXIMUM At (S2lb/delay)	VTICIPATED PVS at	e PIL PIL
1500 45 1400 33 1200 1200 1100					Bit 3 Bit 1			Measured Vib Gelculated Vib MAXIMUM AI (136 lb/delay) MAXIMUM AI (S2lb/delay)	VTICIPATED PVS at	e PIL PIL
1500 45 1400 1300 1200 1100 1000	0	0.02	0.04	0.06	diff 1 201 7 diff 7 <td>0.08</td> <td>0.1</td> <td>Measured Vib Colculated Vib MAXIMUM At (3.36 lb/delay) MAXIMUM At (S2lb/delay)</td> <td>orations.vs. Distance prations vs. Distance NTICIPATED PVS at NTICIPATED PVS at</td> <td>e PIL PIL</td>	0.08	0.1	Measured Vib Colculated Vib MAXIMUM At (3.36 lb/delay) MAXIMUM At (S2lb/delay)	orations.vs. Distance prations vs. Distance NTICIPATED PVS at NTICIPATED PVS at	e PIL PIL
1500 45 1400 1300 1200 1100		0.02	0.04	0.04	6 PVS in in/sec		0.1	Measured Vib Celculated Vib MAXIMUM AI (336 lb/delay) MAXIMUM AI (S2lb/delay) O.12	orations.vs. Distance prations vs. Distance NTICIPATED PVS at NTICIPATED PVS at	e PIL PIL
1500 45 1400 1300 1200 1100	0	0.02	0.04	0.06	6 PVS in in/sec	0.08		Measured Vib Celculated Vib MAXIMUM At (336 lb/delay) MAXOMUM At (52lb/delay)	orations.vs. Distance prations vs. Distance NTICIPATED PVS at NTICIPATED PVS at 0.14	e PIL PIL
1500 4 1500 4 1400 9 1400 1000 1000		0.02	0.04	0.06	6 PVS in in/sec			Measured Vib Galculated Vib MAXIMUM AI (136 lb/delay) MAXIMUM AI (S2lb/delay) O.12	orations.vs. Distance scations vs. Distance NTICIPATED PVS at NTICIPATED PVS at	e PIL PIL
1500 4 5 1400 9 9 1300 1200 1100 1000	0 0	0.02	0.04	0.00	6 PVS in In/sec			Measured Vib Galculated Vib MAXIMUM Al (136 lb/delay) MAXIMUM Al (S2lb/delay) O.12	orations.vs. Distance prations vs. Distance NTICIPATED PVS at NTICIPATED PVS at 0.14	e PIL PIL
1500 45 1400 1100 1200 1100	0	0.02	0.04	0.06	6 PVS in in/sec			Measured Vib Colculated Vib MAXIMUM Ai (136 lb/delay) MAXIMUM Ai (S2lb/delay) O.12	orations.vs. Distance prations vs. Distance NTICIPATED PVS at NTICIPATED PVS at 0.14	e PIL PIL
1500 45 1400 1300 1200 1100 1000	0	0.02	0.04	0.04	6 PVS in in/sec			Measured Vib Colculated Vib MAXIMUM At (3.36 lb/delay) MAXIMUM At (S2lb/delay) O.12	orations.vs. Distance prations vs. Distance NTICIPATED PVS at NTICIPATED PVS at 0.14	e PIL PIL
1500 45 1400 1300 1200 1100	0	0.02	0.04	0.00	6 PVS in in/sec			Measured Vib Celculated Vib MAXIMUM At (336 lb/delay) MAXIMUM At (S2lb/delay) O.12	0.14	e PIL PIL
1500 4 1500 4 1400 1200 1100 1000	0	0.02	0.04	0.08	6 PVS in in/sec			Measured Vib Galculated Vib MAXIMUM AI (136 lb/delay) MAXIMUM AI (S2lb/delay) O.12	Intions.vs. Distance scations vs. Distance NTICIPATED PVS at NTICIPATED PVS at 0.14	e PIL PIL

.

Attachment 5

. . . .





The Commonwealth of Massachusetts William Francis Galvin, Secretary of the Commonwealth Massachusetrs Historical Commission

Fax Transmittal Memorandum

BillWhite MCEC To: ERBell From: 2 NBE Min 'Rc:

617 35 Fax 🕫 Q - 2 0-2013 Date:

Pages, including cover sheet.

•1 Comments; 2013

If this communication has been received in error, please notify us immediately.

220 Morrissey Boulevard, Boston, Massachusetts 02125 Tel: (617) 727-8470 - Fax: (617) 727-5128 - Website: www.state.ma.us/sec/mhc

SDMS Doc ID 550577



UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY Region 1 5 Post Office Square, Suite 100

Boston, MA 02109-3912

September 16, 2013

Brona Simon State Historic Preservation Officer Massachusetts Historical Commission 220 Morrissey Boulevard Boston, MA 02125

RECEIVED

SEP 1 6 2013

MASS. HIST. COMM (7) 488 91

Re: South Terminal Project New Bedford Harbor State Enhanced Remedy

Dear Ms. Simon:

On May 20, 2013, the Commonwealth of Massachusetts submitted a request to the United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 1 ("EPA") for approval of a Second Modification (the "Second Modification") to the Agency's November 19, 2012 Final Determination for the South Terminal Project ("the Final Determination"). The Commonwealth's letter requested that the Agency approve, among other modifications, the inclusion of blasting as a rock removal method. As part of its pre-construction investigations, the Commonwealth determined that blasting in three specific areas in the New Bedford Harbor channel between Palmer's Island and the shoreline at the terminal location would be necessary to construct the bulkhead wall of the terminal facility.

EPA is in receipt of your September 6, 2013 letter concerning the Palmer Island Light Station (the Light Station), a historic property listed on the National Register located within the potential area of affect of the South Terminal Project as contemplated by the proposed Second Modification. More specifically, the Light Station is located on Palmer's Island, which is at the outer edge of the 1500 foot zone where potential vibrations may occur from blasting. Blasting was not addressed in EPA's November 19, 2012 Final Determination. Accordingly, the Light Station was neither included in the Commonwealth's previous historic property assessments nor addressed in our September 28, 2012 letter to you concerning the Agency's determination that the proposed South Terminal Project will not affect historic properties. As a result, your September 6, 2013 letter encouraged EPA to determine whether or not blasting bas the potential to affect the Light House.

In a September 11, 2013 memorandum from the Commonwealth's contractors in support of its request to allow blasting, GZA GeoEnvironmental Inc. presented the modeled anticipated maximum vibration for the Light Station structure that could potentially result from the planned blasting program. That maximum estimated vibration, or peak particle velocity ("PPV"), was 0.034 in/sec, as calculated using a standard engineering equation and site-specific information. The Massachusetts Building Code, at 527 CMR 13.09, regulates allowable maximum vibrations from blasting activities. As noted in the code, "allowable limits are based, with a conservative factor of safety, upon extensive government, university, and engineering research which has established the amount and character of vibration so as to prevent damage and to insure the safety of the public and the protection of property adjacent to the blast area." The most conservative limit established in the Massachusetts Building Code for PPV to ensure the protection of structures with plaster is <0.5 in/sec. As such, the PPV estimated for the Light Station as a result of the proposed blasting is approximately 15 times lower than the allowable maximum vibration for potential damage to plaster structures. A copy of GZA GeoEnvironmental Inc.'s September 11, 2013 memorandum is included as Attachment A.

Even with this margin of safety, the Commonwealth has included additional measures to ensure that the Light Station is protected from blasting impacts. In particular, in partnership with the New Bedford Harbor Development Commission, the Commonwealth conducted extensive pre-blast photography and a video of the Light Station to establish pre-blast conditions, and will take post-blast photographs and a video of the Light Station to document post-blasting conditions. The Commonwealth will also conduct public informational meetings to describe the blasting events. The Massachusetts Clean Energy Center will also conduct a pre-construction structural review of the Light Station. A description of the additional measures is included in a September 10, 2013 letter from the Massachusetts Clean Energy Center to Carl Dierker, EPA, and attached as Attachment B.

In addition, the Commonwealth will take real-time measurements of the actual vibrations generated during blasting to confirm modeling results. In the unlikely event that actual vibrations exceed modeling results and/or impacts are detected during implementation of the Project, as a condition of its approval, EPA will require the Commonwealth to provide immediate notification to EPA. The Agency will immediately engage in consultation with the Massachusetts Historical Commission, the Commonwealth, and the City of New Bedford to discuss and implement measures to avoid, minimize, or mitigate potential impacts to the Light Station.

The Light Station is owned and maintained by the City of New Bedford. On September 13, 2013, EPA received a letter from New Bedford Mayor John Mitchell acknowledging the historic value of the Light Station to the City and describing the City's view of the modeling performed by GZA. In his letter, the Mayor expressed his belief that the Commonwealth's "efforts are appropriate to give the public confidence that the blasting will not place the lighthouse in jeopardy." A copy of Mayor Mitchell's September 13, 2013 letter is attached as Attachment C.

EPA has considered the blast modeling performed by the Commonwealth's consultant, the September 10, 2013 letter from the Massachusetts Clean Energy Center, the September 13, 2013 letter from New Bedford Mayor Mitchell, and your letter to EPA

dated September 6, 2013. In light of this modeling and the actions that will be taken to avoid effects to historic properties, in accordance with 36 CFR 800.4, EPA has concluded that approval of the Second Modification will not affect historic properties. If you have any questions regarding this finding, contact LeAnn Jensen at (617) 918-1072.

It is EPA's understanding that the Commonwealth, through the Massachusetts Executive Office of Energy and Environmental Affairs and the Massachusetts Clean Energy Center, has a strong interest in proceeding with the modifications to the Project, including the blasting program, to meet project timelines. Therefore, we would appreciate it if you could inform us at your earliest convenience whether you object to our determination, and would be happy to meet with you and the Commonwealth later this week to discuss any remaining issues.

In any event, in accordance with the Advisory Council regulation at 36 CFR 800.4, please respond within 30 days of your receipt of this letter. If we do not hear from you within this time period, we will assume that you concur with the Agency's finding and will proceed with our final decision concerning the Commonwealth's Second Modification, subject to the provisions contained in 36 CFR Section 800.13 for treating historic properties discovered during implementation of the Project.

CONCURRENCE. 12200

BRONA SIMON STATE HISTORIC

PRESERVATION OFFICER

HE TORIC COMMISSION

Sincerely,

James T. Owens, III Director, Office of Site Restoration and Remediation

Attachments

cc:

Bettina Washington, Wampanoag Tribe of Gayhead (Aquinnah) Ramona Peters, Mashpee Wampanoag Tribe Victor Masone, Massachusetts Bureau of Underwater Archaeological Resources Gary Davis, Jr., Executive Office of Energy and Environmental Affairs Chet Myers, Apex Companies, LLC

LeAnn Jensen, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 1

З



UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

Region 1 5 Post Office Square, Suite 100 Boston, MA 02109-3912

September 16, 2013

Brona Simon State Historic Preservation Officer Massachusetts Historical Commission 220 Morrissey Boulevard Boston, MA 02125

Re: South Terminal Project New Bedford Harbor State Enhanced Remedy

Dear Ms. Simon:

On May 20, 2013, the Commonwealth of Massachusetts submitted a request to the United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 1 ("EPA") for approval of a Second Modification (the "Second Modification") to the Agency's November 19, 2012 Final Determination for the South Terminal Project ("the Final Determination"). The Commonwealth's letter requested that the Agency approve, among other modifications, the inclusion of blasting as a rock removal method. As part of its pre-construction investigations, the Commonwealth determined that blasting in three specific areas in the New Bedford Harbor channel between Palmer's Island and the shoreline at the terminal location would be necessary to construct the bulkhead wall of the terminal facility.

EPA is in receipt of your September 6, 2013 letter concerning the Palmer Island Light Station (the Light Station), a historic property listed on the National Register located within the potential area of affect of the South Terminal Project as contemplated by the proposed Second Modification. More specifically, the Light Station is located on Palmer's Island, which is at the outer edge of the 1500 foot zone where potential vibrations may occur from blasting. Blasting was not addressed in EPA's November 19, 2012 Final Determination. Accordingly, the Light Station was neither included in the Commonwealth's previous historic property assessments nor addressed in our September 28, 2012 letter to you concerning the Agency's determination that the proposed South Terminal Project will not affect historic properties. As a result, your September 6, 2013 letter encouraged EPA to determine whether or not blasting has the potential to affect the Light House.

In a September 11, 2013 memorandum from the Commonwealth's contractors in support of its request to allow blasting, GZA GeoEnvironmental Inc. presented the modeled anticipated maximum vibration for the Light Station structure that could potentially result from the planned blasting program. That maximum estimated vibration, or peak particle velocity ("PPV"), was 0.034 in/sec, as calculated using a standard engineering equation and site-specific information. The Massachusetts Building Code, at 527 CMR 13.09, regulates allowable maximum vibrations from blasting activities. As noted in the code, "allowable limits are based, with a conservative factor of safety, upon extensive government, university, and engineering research which has established the amount and character of vibration so as to prevent damage and to insure the safety of the public and the protection of property adjacent to the blast area." The most conservative limit established in the Massachusetts Building Code for PPV to ensure the protection of structures with plaster is <0.5 in/sec. As such, the PPV estimated for the Light Station as a result of the proposed blasting is approximately 15 times lower than the allowable maximum vibration for potential damage to plaster structures. A copy of GZA GeoEnvironmental Inc.'s September 11, 2013 memorandum is included as Attachment A.

Even with this margin of safety, the Commonwealth has included additional measures to ensure that the Light Station is protected from blasting impacts. In particular, in partnership with the New Bedford Harbor Development Commission, the Commonwealth conducted extensive pre-blast photography and a video of the Light Station to establish pre-blast conditions, and will take post-blast photographs and a video of the Light Station to document post-blasting conditions. The Commonwealth will also conduct public informational meetings to describe the blasting events. The Massachusetts Clean Energy Center will also conduct a pre-construction structural review of the Light Station. A description of the additional measures is included in a September 10, 2013 letter from the Massachusetts Clean Energy Center to Carl Dierker, EPA, and attached as Attachment B.

In addition, the Commonwealth will take real-time measurements of the actual vibrations generated during blasting to confirm modeling results. In the unlikely event that actual vibrations exceed modeling results and/or impacts are detected during implementation of the Project, as a condition of its approval, EPA will require the Commonwealth to provide immediate notification to EPA. The Agency will immediately engage in consultation with the Massachusetts Historical Commission, the Commonwealth, and the City of New Bedford to discuss and implement measures to avoid, minimize, or mitigate potential impacts to the Light Station.

The Light Station is owned and maintained by the City of New Bedford. On September 13, 2013, EPA received a letter from New Bedford Mayor John Mitchell acknowledging the historic value of the Light Station to the City and describing the City's view of the modeling performed by GZA. In his letter, the Mayor expressed his belief that the Commonwealth's "efforts are appropriate to give the public confidence that the blasting will not place the lighthouse in jeopardy." A copy of Mayor Mitchell's September 13, 2013 letter is attached as Attachment C.

EPA has considered the blast modeling performed by the Commonwealth's consultant, the September 10, 2013 letter from the Massachusetts Clean Energy Center, the September 13, 2013 letter from New Bedford Mayor Mitchell, and your letter to EPA

dated September 6, 2013. In light of this modeling and the actions that will be taken to avoid effects to historic properties, in accordance with 36 CFR 800.4, EPA has concluded that approval of the Second Modification will not affect historic properties. If you have any questions regarding this finding, contact LeAnn Jensen at (617) 918-1072.

It is EPA's understanding that the Commonwealth, through the Massachusetts Executive Office of Energy and Environmental Affairs and the Massachusetts Clean Energy Center, has a strong interest in proceeding with the modifications to the Project, including the blasting program, to meet project timelines. Therefore, we would appreciate it if you could inform us at your earliest convenience whether you object to our determination, and would be happy to meet with you and the Commonwealth later this week to discuss any remaining issues.

In any event, in accordance with the Advisory Council regulation at 36 CFR 800.4, please respond within 30 days of your receipt of this letter. If we do not hear from you within this time period, we will assume that you concur with the Agency's finding and will proceed with our final decision concerning the Commonwealth's Second Modification, subject to the provisions contained in 36 CFR Section 800.13 for treating historic properties discovered during implementation of the Project.

Sincerely.

James T. Owens, III Director, Office of Site Restoration and Remediation

Attachments

cc:

Bettina Washington, Wampanoag Tribe of Gayhead (Aquinnah) Ramona Peters, Mashpee Wampanoag Tribe

Victor Masone, Massachusetts Bureau of Underwater Archaeological Resources Gary Davis, Jr., Executive Office of Energy and Environmental Affairs Chet Myers, Apex Companies, LLC

LeAnn Jensen, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 1

Attachment



· · · ·	•
Mer	no

To:	Chet Meyers, John McAllister (Apex Companies, LLC)
From	Diane Baxter, David Carchedi (GZA GeoEnvironmental, Inc.)
File:	33734.04 Mem-05
Date:	September 11, 2013
Re:	Blasting Impacts on the Palmer Island Lighthouse New Bedford Marine Commerce Terminal New Bedford, Massachusetts

GZA GeoEnvironmental Inc. (GZA) is pleased to provide you with this memorandum on blasting impacts to the Palmer Island Lighthouse.

Blasting Limitations

Blasting limitations have been imposed on the Contractor for this project in the Blasting Specification to limit the Impacts of blasting on adjacent structures. The limits are based on the Massachusetts Building Code, 527 CMR 13.00 Explosives. The code requires that vibrations, measured in Peak Particle Velocity (PPV) In units of inches per second, fall below levels recommended by the U.S. Bureau of Mines as follows:

- Historic Structures PPV<0.5 in/sec.
- Residential Structures in Massachusetts PPV<0.8 in/sec
- Other Structures PPV<2.0 in/sec

Based on years of data, it has been shown that vibrations measured below the readings listed above are unlikely to result in damage to the respective structures.

GZA's Blasting Impacts Report

GZA has performed an extensive study on the Impacts of blasting for this project on adjacent structures (GZA Report, Assessment of Blasting Impacts to the New Bedford-Fairhaven Hurricane Barrier, New Bedford Marine Commerce Terminal, New Bedford, Massachusetts, October 2012, revised August 2013). As a result, we are able to produce estimates of the anticipated vibrations for structures that are located various distances from the nearest blasting location. The equation utilized to determine the potential vibration impact is:

'PPV = 'H' X ['D' / (SQUARE ROOT OF W')]^ 'B'

Where:

'PPV = The Peak Particle Velocity in inches per second.

'H' = The Peak Particle Velocity intercept in inches per second (as formulated from historic blasting data from the United States Bureau of Mines)

@ Page 1

- 'B' = The Slope Factor (as formulated from historic blasting data from the United States Bureau of Mines)
- "W" = Weight of charge per delay in pounds
- 'D' = Distance in feet to the structure in question:

in this case, the following values were utilized:

H = 50 (the upper range of historic United States Bureau of Mines data)

- B = -1.6 (the upper range of historic United States Bureau of Mines data)
- W = 200 pounds, the maximum charge evaluated.

D = 1,350 feet, the distance from the nearest charge to the Palmer's Island lighthouse.

The results of this analysis indicates that the maximum anticipated vibration at the Palmer's Island lighthouse is approximately 0.034 in/sec. This value is approximately 15 times lower than the recommended level issued by U. S. Bureau of Mines and in the MA Building Code (0.5 in/sec) and included in the Contractor's requirements. As a result, we feel confident that the vibrations associated with blasting will not have an impact on the Palmer's Island lighthouse.

Page 2 of 2

GZA Memorandum September 11, 2013

Attachment B



55 Summer Street, 9th Floor Boston, MA 02110 P (617) 315-9355 · F (617) 315-9356 info@masscec.com · www.masscec.com

September 10, 2013

Carl Dierker General Counsel U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 1 5 Post Office Square Boston, MA 02109-3912

Cari,

Please find below responses and answers to each of the comments and questions you submitted via email to MassCEC on September 6, 2013. Additionally, we were forwarded a September 6, 2013 letter from the Massachusetts Historic Commission to EPA on potential impacts to the Palmer's Island Lighthouse, and we have taken the liberty of including a response into this communication.

Response to EPA Comments/Questions from email dated 9/6/2013:

 EPA Comment/Question: MassCEC's response to our question related to timing (see pages 4-5 of the MassCEC letter) states that all the blasting work will end on Nov. 15. It is important that MassCEC understand and acknowledge condition 2 in our June 13, 2013 letter (which we have also included as condition 3 in the letter we sent today to NMFS reinitiating consultation). Specifically, we have stated that EPA will need to evaluate the effects of any blasting that takes place in one area in September before we can agree to allow further blasting before November 15.

<u>Response</u>: MassCEC's letter of August 28, 2013 states that MassCEC anticipates that, due to thicker rock, blasting would take two months rather than one. MassCEC also indicated that if blasting began on September 15, 2013, it could conclude by November 15, 2013. However, given that MassCEC and USEPA are still working together on the blasting permit, and given that the contractor will need several weeks to mobilize equipment prior to blasting, it is likely that blasting will extend beyond November 15, 2013. MassCEC recognizes that it cannot blast after the January 15, 2014 time of year restriction. Additionally, MassCEC understands and acknowledges Condition 2 of EPA's June 13, 2013 letter which states that EPA will carefully evaluate the effects of the blasting that takes place in the first area (the bulkhead area) prior to allowing further blasting before November 15th.

2. EPA Comment/Question: It would be helpful if MassCEC would confirm that, in addition to installing silt and bubble curtains at the blast sites, it intends to install

an additional silt curtain north of the blast sites to deflect migratin; juvenile, anadromous fish from any blasting before Nov. 15, as we stated in our June. 3 letter (condition 3).

. . .

the state of the s

· . 20

10 . 5

. .

له ال و الد الإلخان في في معهد المان المواجعة في الم

and the state of the

ante de la casa da

an an a thur a start an an that an age and the start a

۰.

Response: MassCEC confirms that it will comply with Condition #C ironi EP is June 13th letter on silt/bubble cuitains for blasting that would occil prior to November 15, 2013.

3. EPA Comment/Question. It would be helpful if MassCEC would id htily while the additional blasted rocit will be disposed.

Response: MassCEC has directed its contractor to excavate the blance rock it transfer it to the land side, and process the blasted rock so that it can be utilized in the construction of the New Bedford Marine Commerce Terminal NBMCT). MassCEC inlends to utilize the blasted rock onsite.

4. Please explain why the substantive requirements of State explosive egulation 3.527 CMR Section 13 which regulate the transportation, storage and har illing of explosives on land and vessels, have not been identified as an ARAL and not included in the State's ARARs letters. Alternatively, please revise y ur ARARs analysis and provide an addendum including these regulations. (T. ere appears to be an intent to comply with these regulations since Section 12 of the Biastinic Plan references these regulations and the blasting specs (1.1.1) also require compliance with these regulations.)

<u>Response</u>: The previous ARARs analysis and the Commonwealth's RARs let era did not list 527 CMR Section 13 because MassDEP was aware at the time it generated the letter that the contractor would be required to fully comply with this regulation. Instead of handling this as an ARARs issue, MassCEC and the Contractor shall comply with the State explosive Regulations 527 C IR 13, and will be obtaining all necessary permits associated with 527 CMR 13.

5. EPA Comment/Question: EPA has reviewed the submitted Operational Blasting Plan

- 1) DOT licenses/permits (section 2.2.1);
- a) Explosives Supply Inc.
- i) Certificate of Registration expired 6/30/13
- ii) Hazardous Material Safety Permit expired 4/30/13
- b) John Joseph Inc.
- i) Certificate of Registration expired 6/30/13
- ii) Hazardous Material Safety Permit expired 6/30/12 or 2013
- iii) Truck Annual Inspection: expired; last performed for all trucks in 11/25/13 (Section4.1.3)

Response: MassCEC, through its resident engineer, will return the Operational Blast Plan to Cashman-Weeks NB stamped "revise and resubmit", with each of the highlighted points, amongst other technical comments, and require the contractor to update the Plan prior to the initiation of blasting.

6. Section 4.1.2 is missing the transportation route from explosives supplier to Fish Island.

<u>Response:</u> MassCEC, through its resident engineer, will return the Operational Blast Plan to Cashman-Weeks NB stamped "*revise and resubmit*", with this point highlighted, amongst other technical comments, and require the contractor to update the Plan prior to the initiation of blasting.

7. Section 5.4 and 5.6 will need updating; reflects EPA conditions in June and July letters with 50lb charge per delay limit.

<u>Response</u>: MassCEC, through its resident engineer, will return the Operational Blast Plan to Cashman-Weeks NB stamped "*revise and resubmit*", with this point highlighted, amongst other technical comments, and require the contractor to update the Plan prior to the initiation of blasting.

8. Section 12.2.1 cites 527 CMR Section 13 but the actual text of the regulations is missing.

<u>Response</u>: MassCEC, through its resident engineer, will return the Operational Blast Plan to Cashman-Weeks NB stamped "*revise and resubmit*", with this point highlighted, amongst other technical comments, and require the contractor to update the Plan prior to the initiation of blasting.

Finally, the Massachusetts Historic Commission forwarded a copy of their September 6, 2013 letter to USEPA on the Palmer's Island Lighthouse located in New Bedford Harbor, and we wanted to provide the following information for your consideration.

MassCEC fully appreciates and realizes the importance of the Palmer's Island Lighthouse to the local community. We are working very hard to insure that this vital landmark is protected from any impacts from this project.

As you know, USACE regulates the maximum vibrations that are allowable in association with the potential damage to adjacent structures. These values are measured in Peak Particle Velocity (or PPV) and have the units of inches per second:

- Historic Structures PPV<0.5 in/sec
- Residential Structures in Massachusetts PPV<0.8 in/sec
- Other Structures PPV<2.0 in/sec

That is, vibrations measured below the readings listed are unlikely to result in damage to the structure. We have performed extensive modeling of the blasting and have had a geotechnical engineering consultant work on analyzing the potential impacts from blasting. As a result, we are able to produce estimates of the anticipated vibrations for structures that are located various distances from the nearest blasting location. The equation utilized to determine the potential vibration impact is:

PPV' = H'X [D' / (SQUARE ROOT OF W)] B'

Where:

'PPV' = The Peak Particle Velocity in inches per second.

- H' = The Peak Particle Velocity intercept in inches per second (as formulated from historic blasting data from the United States Bureau of Mines)
- B' The Slope Factor (as formulated from historic blasting data from the
- United States Bureau of Mines)
- 'W' = Weight of charge per delay in pounds
- D' = Distance in feet to the structure in question.

In this case, the following values were utilized:

H = 50 (the upper range of historic United States Bureau of Mines data)

÷.

- B = -1.6 (the upper range of historic United States Bureau of Mirres data)
- W = 200 pounds, the maximum charge evaluated by our geotecl:nical consultant.
- D = 1,350 feet, the distance from the nearest charge to the Palmer's Island lighthouse.

The result of this analysis indicates that the maximum anticipated vibration at the Palmer's Island lighthouse is approximately: 0.034 in/sec. This value is approximately 15 times lower than the recommended level issued by USACE. As a result, we feel confident that the vibrations associated with blasting will not have an impact on the Palmer's Island lighthouse.

Nevertheless, we have a robust monitoring program for the lighthouse. In partnership with the New Bedford Harbor Development Commission, we have completed an extensive pre-blast photography and video of the Palmer's Island Lighthouse to document pre-blasting conditions. Additionally, we are committed to:

• A pre-construction structural review of the Lighthouse.

المحاج والمحاج و

الوراجعين وفارا تتعاور فتراف الدار والوارد الأفو

the end of the second second

2.0

المراجع والمتعادي والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمتعادية والمتعادية والمحاج والمتعادية والمحاج والمحاج والمحاج و

....

- · Real-time measurement of the actual vibrations generated during blasting to
- confirm the results of the modeling; and
- · Post-blast photography and video of the Lighthouse to document post-blasting conditions.

a services and the service of the se

•.'

The second second second second second

5

and and a whether the

MassCEC is fully engaged on the importance of the Palmer's Island Lighthouse and believe the actions we have committed to will insure the integrity of this historic structure.

As blasting is the most critical path activity for the project, it is imperative that we move forward with a final modification as soon as possible.

Thank you,

Bill White

1

Bill White Director, Offshore Wind Sector Development

Attachment



CITY OF NEW BEDFORD JONATHAN F. MITCHELL, MAYOR

September 13, 2013

James T. Owens Director Office of Site Restoration & Remediation US Environmental Protection Agency 5 Post Office Square, Suite 100 Boston, MA 02109

Re: <u>Palmer's Island Lighthouse</u>

Dear Mr. Owens:

The Massachusetts Clean Energy Center recently brought to our attention correspondence from the Massachusetts Historical Commission contending that underwater blasting associated with the South Terminal project poses a risk to the structural integrity of the Palmer's Island Lighthouse. I write to express that as the steward of the lighthouse, I am satisfied with MassCEC's determination, which was based on an independent engineering study, that the blasting poses no such risk.

We understand the nature of MHC's concerns. The lighthouse is near and dear to New Bedford. It has stood for over 150 years, and played an indispensable role in ensuring the safe passage of New Bedford's world renown whaling fleet in the 19th Century. The iconic structure in fact is depicted on the City's seal. Over the last several years, the City has devoted significant effort and resources to providing public access and cleaning up Palmer's Island itself. The lighthouse and the island figure prominently in our long term recreation and tourism plans. We take any threat to the lighthouse seriously.

We have reviewed the engineering evaluation performed by GZA GeoEnvironmental, Inc., a reputable engineering firm, which is attached to this letter. The report unequivocally indicates that the anticipated vibrations from the blasting and other associated construction activities is much lower than any level that would cause damage to the structure. As noted in the report, the maximum anticipated vibration at the lighthouse is approximately 0.034 in/sec. This is approximately *fifteen times lower* than the recommended level established by United States Bureau of Mines and the Massachusetts Building Code (0.5 in/sec). Based on this finding the report concludes that "we feel confident that the vibrations associated with blasting will not have an impact on the Palmer's Island lighthouse."

133 WILLIAM STREET + NEW BEDFORD, MA 02740 + TEL. (508) 979,1410 + FAX (508) 991.6189

To be doubly sure to avoid damage to the lighthouse, MassCEC intends to undertake a rigorous underwater monitoring of the effects, if any, of the blasting. Monitoring activities will include an assessment by a structural engineer during and after blasting as well as real-time vibration monitoring of the structure. The City believes that these efforts are appropriate to give the public confidence that the blasting will not place the lighthouse in jeopardy.

We appreciate your attention to this matter and the larger project that is the New Bedford Marine Commerce Terminal, which, as you know, is a critical infrastructure project for the City and the Commonwealth alike.

÷.

Sincerely, Ion M

Attachment 6

Chet Myers

From: Sent:	Bachand, Michael L NAE < Michael L Bachand@usace.army.m	il> .
To:	Bill White	· .
Cc:	Chet Myers	
Subject:	RE: NBMCT Blasting Request (UNCLASSIFIED)	۰

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED Caveats: NONE

Chet,

Based on my discussions yesterday with internal staff. USACE will issue a communication notifying you and EPA of our acceptance of the additional blasting. The only point needing clarification is how (email or letter) we will do it to satisfy our internal needs.

Mike

Michael L. Bachand, P.E. Levee Safety Program Manager

United States Army Corps of Engineers New England District 696 Virginia Road Concord, Massachusetts 01742 Office: 978.318.8075 Cell: 978.551.1656

-----Original Message----From: Bill White [mailto:bwhite@MassCEC.com] Sent: Thursday, August 14, 2014 7:44 AM To: Bachand, Michael L NAE Cc: 'Chet Myers' Subject: [EXTERNAL] NBMCT Blasting Request

Mike;

Thanks for taking the time to speak with Chet and I yesterday. Let us know your timeline for a communication from the USACE. We plan to make a submission the EPA today.

Many thanks,

Bill

Bill White

Director, Offshore Wind Sector Development Massachusetts Clean Energy Center 63 Franklin Street, Boston, MA 02110 (617) 315-9330

Catri, Cindy

From: Sent: To:	· · •	Chet Myers <cmyers@apexcos.com> Friday, August 15, 2014 9:08 AM Dierker, Carl; Lederer, Dave; Lombardo, Ginny: Stanley, Flaine: Williams, Ann: Colonado</cmyers@apexcos.com>
Cc:	•	Phil; Tisa, Kimberly; Catri, Cindy; Marsh, Michael Alicia Barton; Jay Borkland; Eric Hines (ehines@lemessurier.com); Christopher Morris;
Subject:		Consten Anton; paul.craffey@state.ma.us; Bill White FW: Additional Blasting - New Bedford Marine Commerce Terminal (UNCLASSIFIED)

Hi Carl,

Attached please find additional follow-up information from USACE applicable to yesterday's submittal.

Thanks,

Chet Myers Apex Companies, LLC

O) 617-728-0070 x113 M) 617-908-5778

----Original Message-----

From: Bachand, Michael L NAE [mailto:Michael.L.Bachand@usace.army.mil]

Sent: Friday, August 15, 2014 8:40 AM

To: Chet Myers

Cc: Michalak, Scott C NAE; Bill White; Eric Hines (ehines@lemessurier.com); Gregory Dolan; Diane Baxter; David Carchedi; Susan Nilson; Jay Borkland; Christopher Morris (cmorris@MassCEC.com); Garneau, Alex R NAE; Alexander Haag; Michalak, Scott C NAE; Keegan, Michael F NAE; Fedele, Francis J NAE; Macpherson, John C NAE Subject: RE: Additional Blasting - New Bedford Marine Commerce Terminal (UNCLASSIFIED)

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED Caveats: NONE

Chet,

USACE has reviewed the attached additional information and has no objections to the additional blasting work provided the work is done following the same protocols established in our previous 33 USC 408 approval letter. Please coordinate with USACE operations staff at the New Bedford Hurricane Barrier.

USACE will issue a formal approval letter, however, please use this email as an acceptance until the letter arrives. Unfortunately, I am out of the office today at meetings and then off next week. The official letter will not be signed until the week of 8/25, at the earliest. Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact me on the mobile at the number below.

Regards

Michael L. Bachand, P.E. Levee Safety Program Manager

United States Army Corps of Engineers New England District 696 Virginia Road

Third Modification to EPA's Final Determination for the South Terminal Project New Bedford State Enhanced Remedy

1

Appendix C

EPA's January 22, 2014 Approval with Conditions for the Substitution of Source Material for Mitigation Measures

Catri, Cindy

From:	Catri, Cindy
Sent:	Wednesday, January 22, 2014 12:25 PM
To:	Bill White; Chet Myers; Karen k adams@usace.army.mil
Cc:	Sneeringer, Paul J NAE; Christopher Morris; Christen Anton; Eric Hines; Gregory Dolan; John McAllister; Dierker, Carl; Colarusso, Phil; Marsh, Michael; Williams, Ann; Lombardo, Ginny; Stanley, Elaine; Lederer, Dave; LeClair, Jacqueline; Tisa, Kimberly
Subject:	OU-3 Material
-	

Bill,

Thank you for your submittal dated January 16 that responded to EPA's questions sent to you in an email dated January 15. EPA has reviewed your responses and the data provided as well as the relevant data EPA gathered during design and construction completed to date on the Superfund Lower Harbor CAD cell. After conducting this review, EPA approves MassCEC's request to use clean material dredged from the bottom of the Superfund lower harbor CAD cell as capping material for mitigation in the OU3 pilot cap intertidal and subtidal areas subject to the following conditions:

- 1. The clean material from the bottom of the Superfund lower harbor CAD cell is used only for mitigation capping activities in the intertidal and subtidal areas of the Superfund OU3 pilot cap as represented on the map in Attachment 1 of MassCEC's January 16 response;
- 2. MassCEC is responsible to meet the objectives of the Final Mitigation Plan. As such, the clean material from the bottom of the Superfund lower harbor CAD cell must exhibit the physical and chemical characteristics to support the intertidal creation and subtidal enhancement uses described in the Final Mitigation Plan for the South Terminal Final Determination. Such uses include enhancing spawning and foraging areas for winter flounder, scup, black sea bass and windowpane flounder, enhancing foraging area for avian wildlife, including the Common Tern and the Roseate Tern, and creating horseshoe crab spawning habitat;
- 3. MassCEC provides to EPA a newly revised table of Volume of Material to be Dredged (see Table 1 of EPA's Second Modification to the Final Determination), as well as a revised Final Mitigation Plan or a letter documenting revisions to the plan or replacement pages as appropriate to reflect the approved change;
- 4. MassCEC continues to comply with the Final Mitigation Plan including obligations for maintenance (Section 8), performance standards (Section 9) and Monitoring (Section 10) which apply to the OU3 mitigation area, as revised by the use of the Superfund lower harbor CAD material; and
- 5. For proper disposal of the material dredged from the terminal channel and the Gifford Street boat basin which was originally identified for use as capping material for the OU3 pilot cap mitigation area identified in Attachment 1 of the January 16 response, MassCEC will work with all appropriate parties, including the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, to either secure a new permit for offshore disposal, modify the existing permit, or dispose of the material at an appropriate land-based facility.

Please be aware that EPA anticipates work on the Superfund Lower Harbor CAD cell will restart tomorrow, January 23, and that the clean material dredged from the bottom is currently scheduled for offshore disposal. Please contact Dave Lederer at (617) 918-1325 as soon as possible to coordinate use of this material for the above approved mitigation work.

Third Modification to EPA's Final Determination for the South Terminal Project New Bedford State Enhanced Remedy

.

Appendix D

EPA's March 7, 2014 Approval with Conditions for a Single Blasting Event

•



UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY Region 1 5 Post Office Square, Suite 100 Boston, MA 02109-3912

March 7, 2014

Via electronic mail <u>bwhite@MassCEC.com</u> and First-Class Mail

Bill White, Director Offshore Wind Sector Development Massachusetts Clean Energy Center 63 Franklin Street Boston, MA 02110

RE: Request for Additional Blasting Event New Bedford Harbor Superfund Site State Enhanced Remedy – South Terminal Project

Dear Mr. White:

EPA has reviewed MassCEC's request dated February 28, 2014 for one additional blasting event beyond the blasting authorized in EPA' Second Modification of the South Terminal Project issued on September 30, 2013. Because the requested blasting event will occur after January 15, the date EPA identified in its Second Modification after which no blasting was allowed in order to protect various aquatic resources, EPA has also coordinated with the National Marine Fisheries Services (NMFS) concerning this request.

In its request, MassCEC describes the additional action as one blasting event to be conducted in an area already authorized for blasting, located immediately along the edge of the terminal bulkhead. The area of the rock to be blasted is approximately 50 feet in length, ranging in width from approximately 2 to 10 feet, and approximately 16 feet thick at its thickest point. It is currently estimated that the total volume of the rock is approximately 125 cubic yards. It is anticipated that the blast will require approximately six to 12 holes, and that each hole would be loaded to approximately 32 pounds per delay. The request goes on to state that this action is necessary because the prior authorized blasting did not fully address a small portion of rock in this area that must be removed before construction of the bulkhead can continue as scheduled within 15 days of the date of the request.

To accommodate MassCEC's schedule, EPA expedited its review and coordination with NMFS. EPA and NMFS reviewed the February 28, 2014 submittal as well as blasting reports containing monitoring results submitted by MassCEC's contractor.

After conducting its review and coordination with NMFS, EPA has determined that the proposed blast is smaller than the series of blasts that MassCEC conducted in the same general area over the winter. Those previous blasts were conducted in accordance with requirements for a fish deterrent system, a fisheries observer on site, and monitoring for fish pre- and post-blasting. No significant amount of fish mortality was observed as a result of those blasts.

This blast will occur during the spawning season of winter flounder. To ensure compliance with Essential Fish Habitat (EFH) under Magnuson-Stevens and the Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act (FWCA), the fish deterrent system, fisheries observer and monitoring plan must be in place. Additionally, we believe that risk to winter flounder from blasting is limited to a very small area around the blast zone, due to the absence of a swim bladder in this demersal species. Thus, EPA believes that additional controls are not warranted and that we have fulfilled our obligation to minimize impacts to EFH. Because the blast will occur prior to the typical time period for spring migration of Atlantic sturgeon, an identified endangered species, EPA believes a re-initiation of the Endangered Species Consultation is not warranted, as this activity would not pose any risk above and beyond what had been considered in the prior consultations with NMFS. By email dated March 7, 2014, NMFS has concurred with EPA's conclusions and concluded that no further consultation or coordination is necessary.

EPA has also reviewed the vibrations recorded in the blasting reports taken pursuant to the Vibration Monitoring Program and notes that all readings from the winter blasting events were below the allowable limits for historic, residential and other structures (including the hurricane barrier) that were identified in EPA's Second Modification document. Because this is a smaller event conducted in an already approved location, EPA does not believe this blasting event will exceed those allowable levels; however, the same monitoring program must be in place.

As a result of its review and after coordinating with NMFS, EPA determines that this is a minor change to its September 30, 2014 Second Modification for the South Terminal Project and that the requested additional blasting event continues to meet the substantive requirements of all identified ARARs in EPA's Second Modification of the South Terminal Project as long as the following conditions are met:

- 1. The additional blasting event remains as described in MassCEC's February 28, 2014 letter (including a single blast event, with 6-12 boreholes in one shot with delays, with a maximum total explosive charge of 32 lb. per borehole) and includes a minimum 25 millisecond delay between charge detonations;
- 2. For compliance with TSCA, all contaminated material is removed and properly disposed in accordance with EPA's prior determinations for South Terminal;
- 3. Implement all mitigation and monitoring measures required for prior blasting events as described in EPA's Second Modification to protect aquatic resources

including water quality monitoring, the fish deterrent system, a fisheries observer on site, and monitoring for fish pre- and post-blasting;

- 4. Implement all impact parameter and monitoring measures required for prior blasting events as described in EPA's Second Modification for impact on land structures and in water structures, including the historic Palmer Light Station and the hurricane barrier;
- 5. Implement all measures for public notice to landowners and mariners required for prior blasting events in accordance with EPA's Second Modification; and
- 6. MassCEC provides EPA with a post-blasting report similar to the weekly blasting reports provided from prior blasting events.

While this requested work represents only a minor change to its Second Modification for the South Terminal Project, EPA will post a fact sheet on its New Bedford Harbor Superfund Site web page <u>http://www2.epa.gov/new-bedford-harbor</u> summarizing the work.

If you have any questions, please contact Ginny Lombardo at (617) 918-1754 or Cynthia Catri at (617) 918-1888.

Very truly yours,

James T. Owens III, Director Office of Site Remediation and Restoration

cc: via electronic mail dierker.carl@epa.gov williams.ann@epa.gov colarusso.phil@epa.gov marsh.mike@epa.gov catri.cynthia@epa.gov lombardo.ginny@epa.gov

Third Modification to EPA's Final Determination for the South Terminal Project New Bedford State Enhanced Remedy

Appendix E

Second Modification to November 19, 2012 TSCA § 761.61(c) Determination for New Bedford South Terminal Marine Facility

Second Modification to November 19, 2012 TSCA § 761.61(c) Determination for

New Bedford South Terminal Marine Facility

In its November 19, 2012 Toxic Substances Control Act 40 CFR § 761.61(c) Determination (November 19, 2012 TSCA Determination), EPA found that disposal of PCB-contaminated sediments containing less than ("<") 50 parts per million (ppm) into CAD cell #3 and removal of greater than (">") 25 ppm with capping of less than or equal to ("<") 25 ppm PCB-contaminated soils on certain upland areas would not pose an unreasonable risk to human health or the environment provided certain conditions were met. This November 19, 2012 TSCA Determination was based on information set forth in the Administrative Record for the New Bedford Harbor South Terminal Project.

Subsequently, the November 19, 2012, TSCA Determination was modified on September 30, 2013 ("the First Modified TSCA Determination"), to include removal of an additional 11,000 cubic yards of PCB-contaminated sediment from the navigational channel with disposal of these sediments into CAD cell #3 and to increase the final maximum PCB concentration allowed onsite in upland areas of the main facility from ≤ 25 ppm to < 50 ppm without the need for confirmatory sampling. EPA found that these activities would not pose an unreasonable risk to human health or the environment provided certain conditions were met. Inclusion of similar upland remediation of all or a portion of the Radio Tower parcel was requested at that time; however, the information provided was insufficient for EPA to include the Radio Tower parcel in the First Modified TSCA Determination. The First Modified TSCA Determination was based on information set forth in the Administrative Record for the Second Modification of EPA's Determination for the New Bedford Harbor South Terminal Project.

On July 25, 2014, the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, through the Massachusetts Clean Energy Center, ("the Commonwealth") submitted a request for a second modification to the November 19, 2012 TSCA Determination to include removal of an additional 30,000 cubic yards of PCB-contaminated sediments from the navigational channel with disposal of these sediments into CAD cell #3. Documents dated July 25, 2014, August 14, 2014, and September 12 and 25, 2014 were provided in support of this requested second modification. More specifically, 30,000 cubic yards of PCB-contaminated sediments with < 50 ppm would be generated during the expansion of the navigational channel by 25 feet to the east and 50 feet to the west to a depth of -30 MLLW to -32 MLLW represented by the red, orange, dark blue and light blue areas shown in the attached map (see Attachments 1 and 2).

In its request, the Commonwealth has indicated that inclusion of these additional sediments into CAD cell #3 would not require further expansion of CAD cell #3 as the additional capacity would be generated by self-compression of the sediments within CAD cell #3, and a reduced volume of material was disposed in CAD cell #3 than was previously anticipated.

In addition, the Commonwealth has submitted and EPA has approved a work plan to address PCB contamination identified within a portion of the Radio Tower parcel as depicted on Attachment 3. Under the approved work plan, identified PCBs with greater than or equal to (" \geq ") 50 ppm would be removed and PCB concentrations of < 50 ppm would remain in-place beneath a minimum three-foot thick Dense Graded Aggregate cap. In addition, the parcel would be changed from ancillary use for equipment storage to heavy load use. Based on the characterization sampling conducted and the proposed excavation procedures, confirmatory sampling was not proposed. The approved final Remedial Work Plan for PCB Remedial Activities and Soil Management Plan for the Radio Tower Parcel, dated September 27, 2014, including its attachments, supports this proposed plan to address material with PCB concentrations \geq 50 ppm.

Consistent with 40 CFR § 761.61(c), I have reviewed these documents regarding the proposed work and have determined that: disposal of these additional < 50 ppm PCB-contaminated sediments into CAD cell #3; and excavation and off-site disposal of \geq 50 ppm PCB-contaminated soils from the portion of the Radio Tower parcel depicted on Attachment 3 of this Second Modified TSCA Determination with onsite disposal of upland soils with PCB concentrations < 50 ppm beneath a minimum three-foot thick Dense Graded Aggregate cap, will not pose an unreasonable risk of injury to health or the environment provided the following conditions are met:

- Unless otherwise modified below by this Second Modified TSCA Determination, continuing compliance with all conditions contained in the November 19, 2012 TSCA Determination (Appendix J(1) of the Final Determination) as modified by the First Modified TSCA Determination (Appendix D of the Second Modification to the Final Determination).
- 2. Remediation of identified PCB-contaminated soils with concentrations ≥ 50 ppm and other site remediation work shall be conducted in accordance with the EPA-approved Remedial Work Plan for PCB Remedial Activities and Soil Management Plan for the Radio Tower parcel dated September 27, 2014 and its attachments.
- 3. Identified PCB-contaminated soils with greater than or equal to ≥ 50 ppm as depicted on Attachment 3 shall be excavated to the depth and extent as depicted on Attachment 4 and shall be disposed off-site at a TSCA-approved disposal facility or a RCRA hazardous waste landfill in accordance with 40 CFR § 761.61(a)(5)(i)(B)(2)(iii). Confirmatory sampling shall not be required.
- 4. A final grading plan for the Radio Tower parcel shall be submitted to EPA for review and approval prior to initiation of grading activities on said parcel.
- 5. Maintenance of the ground surfaces shall be incorporated into the long-term monitoring plan to be established for the Main Terminal Facility (Condition 6 of November 19, 2012 TSCA Determination).

This Second Modification to the November 19, 2012 TSCA Determination is based on the information contained in the July 25, 2014, August 14, 2014, and September 12 and 25, 2014 submissions, and the September 27, 2014 final work plan and associated attachments. Any proposed change(s) to work described in these submissions shall be provided to EPA. Upon review, EPA may find it necessary to revise this Second Modification to the November 19, 2012 TSCA Determination or issue a new or further modified TSCA determination based on the proposed change(s).

30/14

James T. Owens, III Director, Office of Site Remediation & Restoration

Date

Attachment 1:Map of Navigational Channel Expansion AreaAttachment 2:Map of Navigational Channel PCB ConcentrationsAttachment 3:Map Radio Tower Parcel DGA-10 Area

Attachment 4: Map of DGA-10 Excavation Depths



25 Foot Expansion to the West

50 Foot Expansion to the East And Elimination of Tug Channel

CANE BA

Attachment 1.

LEGEND -14 TO -20 MLLW -20 TO -25 MLLW -25 TO -28 MLLW -28 TO -30 MLLW -30 MLLW & DEEPER




8

V%*Cor

8.653 1.232 5.774

each sample are d

nple. These areas stanci Cell within t

The proportion of the total volume repositiented by each Volumoi Ce licented and called "Volume (PVF. The proportion of the total volume for each Vorunoi Cell is multiple e concentration of the sample associated with that cell (PVFConc). The variant all of the volumes times the concentration (SMM of PCConc. Is the average concentration for the design forciprint.

of the total

Total PCB co

resented by each si The area of each 1

× S-ae512

3.0

0.94

5.8 5.82 m

BC7.9

Nador N



P: \Jobs\6690 N8H_ Phose IV\PLANS\FINAL_PLANS\CONSTRUCTION\P-1.2_PCB_CONFIRM_SAMPLE_PLAN_RodioTower_Dec2013.deg 6/26/2014 10:52 AM

3



P:\Jobs\6890 NBH_ Phose IV\PLANS\FINAL_PLANS\CONSTRUCTION\P-1.2_PCB_CONFIRM_SAMPLE_PLAN_RodioTower_Dec2013.deg 6/26/2014 10:53 AM

T